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AmerisourceBergen
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Return on Committed

~

Revenue Over
$40 Billion

Earnings Per Share”
@E@ £.2%

Capital® 25.5%

* axcluding speciel @h@{f@@

As one of the nation’s largest pharmaceutical services
providers, AmerisourceBergen works with manufacturers
of branded pharmaceuticals, generic pharmaceuticals,
biotech and specialty drugs, over-the-counter remedies,
and health and beauty aids, leveraging our scale to
provide our customers with the best value. We service
retail pharmacies, national and regional chains, hospitals,
clinics, pharmacy benefit managers, prescription mail order
facilities, physician offices, and long-term care facilities.

Every day, our more than 13,000 employees use their
innovation and expertise to help over 25,000 customers
take costs out of their operations, provide better
services, and improve patient care. AmerisourceBergen
continues to enhance its position in the pharmaceutical
supply channel by optimizing efficiencies across its
distribution network, bringing new and innovative
products and services to its customers, and continuing

to deliver industry leading service.




‘ . ~w Sharenolders:

In our first full year of operation, AmerisourceBergen achieved superior

operating performance, and at the same time demonstrated a firm commitment
to corporate responsibility. Your Board of Directors and its committees
discharge their duties conscientiously, and all directors are fully committed
- to compliance with corporate governance standards.
'WT . . | The 2002 Annual Report includes a brief biography of the members of
: ) . m\‘ , the Board and their committee assignments. The chairman of each committee
is well-qualified and experienced. Committee members have considerable expertise
«, ) and are supportive, but also are willing to challenge management. Other than the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, each member of the Board is independent,
none of them has any interlocking directorships, and the Board meets exclusive
of management in executive session.
We consider shareholder value to be a reflection not only
of the financial performance of the Company, but also your
confidence that those results have been earned and reported
forthrightly in an ethical and compliant manner.
The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the
Consolidated Financial Statements that follow have been
certified by David Yost, Chief Executive Officer, and Michael

DiCandilo, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

Sincerely,

TN

Robert E. Martini
Chairman of the Board
January 21, 2003
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Our mission is to
build shareholder
value by delivering
pharmaceutical and
healthcare products,
services, and solutions
in innovative and
cost-effective ways.

R. David Yost
Chief Executive Officer

We'll SL@y f@@@usc*

Fellow Shareholders:

Fiscal year 2002 was a truly memorable one for our Company. It was only on August 29,

2001, just about a month before our fiscal year began on October 1st, that the merger
of AmeriSource Health and Bergen Brunswig was completed, creating AmerisourceBergen —
the new market leader in pharmaceutical distribution.

In an era where large mergers — particularly mergers of equals — fail to deliver on
profits, potential, and shareholder value, AmerisourceBergen’s first year stands as a shining
example of commitment and success.

If called upon to describe our first full year of operations in a single phrase, it would be
“40, 40 in the first.” In our first full fiscal year, we grew revenues to over $40 billion and grew
our earnings per share over 40% (actually 42%) to $3.29, excluding special charges. But such
a short phrase would dramatically understate all that was accomplished in fiscal year 2002.

On the financial front, we drove down our operating costs and increased our operating

margins as we grew revenues by 16% and delivered a Return on Committed Capital of 25.5%.

Our reportable segments, Pharmaceutical Distribution and PharMerica® both delivered

extraordinary results. !
On the operational front, we moved quickly and decisively to begin execution of

our integration plan. The simple elements of our plan... no co-management positions;

a separate integration organization with superb leadership; speed over perfection;

minimal customer disruption; and frequent and honest communication served all

constituencies of our Company well. As a part of achieving the announced $150 million

of annual operating cost-saving synergies by the end of year three (September 2004),

it was necessary to eliminate duplicate positions. We worked hard to handle the /

departures with fairness and compassion.

[

&
Diluted Earnings Per Share

before special and
extraordinary items

Throughout the year, the entire AmerisourceBergen leadership team and all

associates worked hard to conduct all activities in accordance with the Company's
core values, established by a group of senior executives of the two former companies
before the merger was completed. I take our core values, noted following my
comments, very seriously and hav_e them printed on a laminated card I carry
at all times. I expect other associates to do the same.

Some new faces joined our senior management ranks. Jack Quinn joined
the Company as Vice President and Corporate Treasurer, Tim Guttman joined as
Vice President and Corporate Controller, and Jeanne Fisher joined as Senior Vice
President, Human Resources. After an extensive national search, Mike DiCandilo,

the Controller of AmerisourceBergen and seasoned industry executive, was named






Using its large
foctprint in the
pharmaceutical
supply channel,

AmerisourceBergen
is developing
solutions to increase
the efficiency of
manufacturers and
providers of

pharmaceuticals.

Chief Financial Officer. At the October meeting of the Board of Directors, Kurt Hilzinger
was elected President, reflecting his leadership role within the Company. Kurt retains the
position of Chief Operating Officer. Both Kurt and Mike share their thoughts on “Delivering
Growth” in this report.

As we have begun to use our scale to enhance our position within the pharmaceutical
channel, we have made several strategic acquisitions. AutoMed Technologies™ joined
AmerisourceBergen in July, and Bridge Medical™ was acquired in January 2003. AutoMed
provides the best scalable pharmacy automation solutions (including both hardware
and software) in the market, and clearly addresses our customers’ need for accurate and
efficient product dispensing in an era of an increasing pharmacist shortage. Bridge Medical
provides the most comprehensive institutional patient medication safety system available.
Bridge Medical's bedside scanning system is fully operational in several acute-care facilities
and ensures the five product “rights” to all patients (right patient, right drug, right dose,
right time, right route). Patient safety is one of the largest challenges facing hospital
administrators today, and the Bridge system is the best answer to that challenge.

In January 2003, we also expanded our growing specialty pharmaceutical services
business by acquiring US Bioservices, a national pharmaceutical services company focused
on the management of high cost, complex therapies and reimbursement support to the
physician and manufacturer market segments. US Bioservices is a great complement to our
broad specialty pharmaceutical offering, and we are very excited they have joined the
AmerisourceBergen family. Specialty pharmaceutical distribution and services will be a key
growth platform for AmerisourceBergen in the years ahead.

In many respects, our work at AmerisourceBergen has just begun.

Rest assured that despite the demands of integration and the acquisitions, we remain

focused on creating long-term shareholder value. The key components of success are being

State-of-the-art bar-coded packaging provided AmensourceBergen
by American Health Packaging® combined ;

with AutoMed’s bar-code driven pharmacy the best national
automation systems and Bridge Medical's pharmaceutica[
bedside bar-code scanning capabilities offer .. .

a complete solution for improving patient distributor in

medication safety.

PharMerica’s Senior Select
Preferred Products program
saved customers up to 48%

on high-spend drug categories.

| Infiscal year

| 2002, independent
i customer surveys

~ } again named

customer service.




established: a state-of-the-art distribution network; a strong and growing specialty
pharmaceutical distribution system; the most comprehensive offering of value-added services
in the provider market, complemented with pharmacy automation and patient safety
technology; the industry’s largest and best-trained sales force; and a management team
that is best in class in the industry.

You can expect us to continue to enhance our role in the pharmaceutical supply channel
as we expand our value-added services to both provider customers and manufacturing partners,
and not to move far afield from this channel. Pharmaceutical distribution continues to
reflect strong fundamentals: long-term, double-digit growth fueled by new products and
demographics. We operate in a business where time is our friend — the older people get,
the more pharmaceuticals they take, and the more pharmaceuticals people take, the older
they get. We call that the ABC circle of life.

We remain committed to our long-term goal of growing our earnings per share 20%
or more per year, and with the people, programs, and services we have assembled, we are
confident in our ability to achieve that high level of performance.

The associates of AmerisourceBergen — your associates — delivered extraordinary
performance in an incredibly challenging year. It is a great honor for me to be associated
with them.

Thank you for your continued support.

7 ol Jrt-

Chief Executive Officer
January 21, 2003
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With more
than 500 sales

associates, the
Company 1s the

mdustry leader j
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Fellow Shareholders:

AmerisourceBergen’s commitment is to deliver value to the pharmaceutical supply channel

by being a strong.service provider. As we continue to improve and grow our traditional
pharmaceutical distribution business, we know that we are in a unique position to increasingly
broaden our array of services to both manufacturers and providers within the pharmaceutical
supply channel.

Manufacturers of branded and generic pharmaceuticals, new biotech drugs, and over-the-
counter and health-and-beauty-aid products all depend on our ability to get these critical
products safely, quickly and cost-efficiently to the healthcare providers and pharmacies
that serve patients. We deliver to more than 25,000 pharmacies every day. It is a highly
valued service and an enormous footprint.

We are constantly on the lookout for new opportunities to increase our value in the
pharmaceutical channel. Our provider and manufacturing partners look to AmerisourceBergen
for help in growing their market shares, operating their businesses more efficiently, and
most importantly, improving the care and safety of patients. We will use our unmatched
scale, our expertise and obsession with cost efficiency, and our highly valued customers
and manufacturers to help identify and build new services. Some service capabilities

we will build internally, and others we will acquire.

Manufacturer Services
To help our manufacturer partners expand market share, we provide sales support
throughout our network. New product launches currently enter the market. within 48 hours

of government approval, and we are continuing to develop our drug commercialization

ces ofrerea

We are enhancing

our position in the
pharmaceutical
channel as we

add patient safety,
specialty pharmaceutical
distribution, pharmacy
automaticn and

other services.

Kurt J. Hilzinger
President and
Chief Operating Officer

DIrOVIGers.

capability to offer sales support services such as patient education and reimbursement
management to provide further value to our manufacturer partners.
Our AmerisourceBergen Specialty Group is very active in getting new, complex,
targeted, biotech drugs to the market place. Manufacturers look to the Specialty

. Group for help in reimbursement consulting, third party logistics, patient

\
) and physician education, and of course, product distribution.
Formulary compliance activities through packaging and other
A methods are other important services which manufacturers look to us :

to provide. In the future, we are also looking at opportunities in
contract and clinical pharmaceutical packaging, an area that can
provide cost savings for manufacturers and an excetlent return

on committed capital for AmerisourceBergen.

/

(




Six new distribution
centers with
approximately
300,000 square feet
each will anchor
AmerisourceBergen’s

new network.

Provider Services

We are adding new capabilities as we address the key issues faced by our retail and
institutional customers: cost-efficiency, staffing constraints and patient safety. Recently
acquired AutoMed Technologies provides increased efficiency through dispensing automation
for retail and institutional pharmacies as well as reduces staffing needs and improves
dispensing accuracy. AutoMed’s offerings are uniguely scalable to any pharmacy operation
from large mail order operations to small community pharmacies. With only about 5%
of all retail pharmacies automated, the combination of our relationships with customers
and AutoMed’s solutions position us to effectively address our customers’ needs.

In hospitals, we will be looking to combine AutoMed's ability to bar code medications
with newly acquired Bridge Medical’s abitity to provide point-of-care medication verification
at the bedside. This combination is expected to significantly improve medication accuracy

while at the same time providing the resources to track therapeutic outcomes.

Building A New Distribution Network

In our distribution and logistics business, we are doing more than just consolidating
the network to wring out cost savings. We recently launched the Optimiz™ program, a large
capital investment program designed to focus capacity on growing markets, significantly
increase warehouse efficiencies, and streamline our transportation activities. Utilizing proven,
leading-edge technologies, many new to the pharmaceutical distribution industry, we are
building a distribution system that we believe will deliver both the lowest costs in pharma-
ceutical distribution and the highest accuracy and speed of customer order fulfillment.

The new distribution network will be anchored in our six new distribution centers, each
approximately 300,000 square feet in size and fully automated. Along with the new facilities,

we are expanding seven other distribution centers, The result is a 75% increase in the

. e
ST TN A SN pATEE) 6 S N o ne =
. — | RS E

f
W L‘ HS
Ll N e Wi s U N W s

B S SRR, LRI )

RN P T

o 1o - QO
R el Ta Rt

I

G P
N L N L g e (s




system’s average square footage while reducing the number of distribution centers to 30

from 51. Inside the walls of the distribution centers, we are upgrading warehouse automation
on each of the 30 distribution centers that will make up the completed network. The close
tracking of warehousing processes is expected to improve productivity by 40% and boost
order accuracy levels to nearly 100%.

With the consolidation of seven distribution centers in fiscal year 2002 and a commitment
to consolidate another six in fiscal year 2003, we are already well on our way. We also
recently announced the ground breaking on two of the new, large distribution centers, one in
Columbus, Ohio, and one in Sacramento, California. Our first expansion was recently completed
in Boston. We expect to complete the entire new system by the end of fiscal year 2006.

The consolidation and operational improvements remain the backbone of our commitment
to deliver approximately $150 million in annualized synergy cost savings by the end of
fiscal year 2004. We have also committed to additional savings beyond 2004 as we complete
the distribution network.

As we streamline our distribution network and continue to add to the portfolio of
valued services we deliver to healthcare providers and manufacturers, our commitment
to superior customer service and our capital discipline ensure we are building the platform

for sustainable future growth.

it Toer~

Kurt J. Hilzinger
President and Chief Operating Officer
January 21, 2003

Our pharmacy
consulting business,
Pharmacy Healthcare
Solutions™, helps
hospital and

other acute care
P pharmacies improve

The Good Neighbor Pharmacy® and Family their e ciency.
Pharmacy® network of community pharmacies ‘
is the largest affiliation of retail pharmacies
in the nation.

We plan to expand
our packaging
capability beyond
repackaging into
bottles to include
contract and
clinical packaging.
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Qur broad customer
base means only
one customer
contributed more
than 5% of our
operating revenue

in fiscal year 2002.

Michael D. DiCandilo

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Fellow Shareholders:

Our long-term goals reflect our commitment to grow the bottom line faster than the

top line. How? First, we expect to grow our operating revenue with the market, which with
increased drug utilization means growth solidly in the low double digits. That double-digit
growth is expected to help us grow our earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 15%

or greater. We expect to maintain a return on committed capital of over 20%, reflecting
disciplined working capital management, which together with our expected strong EBIT
growth should generate significant cash from operations. With that cash we'll continue

to pay down debt, lower our interest expense and seek to deliver a bottom-line earnings
per share growth of 20% or greater. Those are our long-term goals and the formula that
makes this an attractive business.

Our track record supports those long-term goals. In the last five years on a pro forma
combined basis, our top line has grown at a compounded annual growth rate of 16%, going
from $19 billion in 1997 to a record-breaking $40 billion this year. Over the same period,
we grew EBIT by just under 20%, while also maintaining a consistent EBIT margin.

How have we kept that EBIT margin strong in the face of increased competition and
declining gross margins? We've done it by becoming more efficient. Our operating expenses
in pharmaceutical distribution as a percentage of operating revenue have gone from 3.7%
in fiscal 1996 to the 2.2% we reported for fiscal year 2002, a significant improvement. How
much lower can it go? Much lower. We have large distribution centers today, that are performing
at the rate of 1.5% operating expenses to operating revenue or less with all corporate
expenses fully allocated. Lowering this ratio is one of the major financial goals of our new
distribution network. The current success of our merger integration and distribution center

consolidation gives us added confidence that we will continue to lower costs in the future.
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Consistent ROCC

Return on Committed Capital

We are also focused on working capital management. Return On Committed Capital
or ROCC is one of our key measures and the one that we believe is a critical component
of long-term shareholder value. We define ROCC as earnings before interest, taxes and
amortization, divided by receivables, plus inventory, less payables, plus the fixed assets
we deploy in the business. We use ROCC to evaluate all parts of our business including new
customer opportunities, investment buying opportunities and acquisitions. Our managers
down to the distribution center level are rewarded based on this critical metric, and it is
ingrained in our culture. Our tong-term goal is to maintain ROCC above 20%. Over the last
several years, we have exceeded that goal by delivering ROCC in the mid-twenties,

Our strong EBIT growth and consistently solid ROCC have driven our bottom-line growth.

While the top line has grown at 16%, earnings per share before special and extraordinary
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An aging
population and a
pipeline of new
pharmaceuticals
from more than
$57 billion in
nharmaceutical
research are

key drivers of
our growth.

items have grown at a compounded annualized rate of just under 24% to the $3.29 we

reported this fiscal year.

Industry Growth

What are some of the factors that now and in the future continue to allow us to grow
our bottom line significantly faster than the top line? First is the inherent operating
leverage in our business. As we have grown our revenue at a solid double-digit rate, our
work units, or in our terms invoice lines and deliveries, have grown in the single digits.
The result is natural operating leverage. For example, if a customer ordered two units of
a pharmaceutical rather than one, it is still one pick for us, one work unit, and we leverage
that productivity.

And of course, our scale leverages our fixed costs, and our cost-per-line has declined
as we push more and more volume through our warehouses. Our new distribution network
will enhance this leverage.

Generic drugs are another industry accelerator. Not only do generic pharmaceuticals
offer us the opportunity for selling margins three to five times those of branded products,
but as a portfolio of products, generics also result in equal or greater gross margin dollars
per unit, Our ProGenerics™ generic drug program delivers much lower drug costs to provider
customers and consumers while at the same time enhancing our gross margin.

Generics also come with lower risk because our investment in inventory and receivables

is less than with brand-name pharmaceuticals. The reduced investment leads to a strong ROCC.

AmerisourceBergen Growth Drivers
Within AmerisourceBergen we expect to continue to grow earnings per share faster

than revenues by adding new higher-margin services and solutions for our manufacturing

8/ \&
Solid Operating Revenue
in millions

*pro forma data of combined
Company excluding bulk shipments

AmerisourceBergen expects

to generate approximately
$150 million in annualized
synergy cost savings by

the end of fiscal year 2004,
and expects additional cost
savings to continue well
beyond as it completes its
distribution network.

Our new Optimiz™ program
is expected to improve
warehouse productivity by 40%.




partners and provider customers as well as continuing to leverage the cost savings from
the merger and the new distribution network.

In the Specialty Group we have great opportunities to enhance our operating margins

through specialty distribution and by providing the highly valued services, such as reimbursement

and logistics consulting, that new biotechnology companies, in particular, are seeking.

Our AutoMed and Bridge Medical acquisitions are good examples of how our enhanced
presence in the supply channel will help our customers and provide us with higher EBIT
margin businesses that should grow the bottom line. We expect to add other small acquisitions
that will continue to enhance our presence in the pharmaceutical supply channet.

We also expect to accelerate the bottom line with strong working capital discipline.

In this past fiscal year we added over $5 billion of revenue while increasing our average
amount of working capital utilized to support our businesses by a minimal amount. This
resulted in positive cash flow which led to debt reduction and lowered interest expense.
And as long as interest expense grows less than revenue growth, we should continue to
benefit from financial leverage going forward.

1t is all about discipline: the discipline for expense control, the discipline to control
working capital, and the discipline to make strategically and operationally strong acquisitions
to enhance our position in the channel. The result is our continued commitment to meet our

long-term financial goals.

Michael D. DiCandilo
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
January 21, 2003

) AmerisourceBergen is the
— largest buyer
; of generic pharmaceuticals n

/ the nation and earns more profit on
-
them than anib Qéi}jd&ed drugs.
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Leadership Team

William D. Sprague,
Vice President,
General Counsel
and Secretary

Charles J. Carpenter,
Senior Vice President and
President of PharMerica, Inc. §

William G. Allen,
Regional Vice President,
Southeast Region

David M. Senior,
Vice President,
Business Development

Douglas E. Batezel,
Vice President and Chief
Procurement Officer

Richard L. Carter,
Regional Vice President,
Denise K. Gilleland, Northeast Region
Regional Vice President,
Midwest Region

4
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Jeanne B. Fisher,
Senior Vice President,
Human Resources




Terrance P. Haas,
Senior Vice President,

Integration
Frank H. Green,

Regional Vice President,
South Central Region

=

' Linda M. Burkett,
M. Vice President and
REE,  (hief Information Officer

Daniel L. Withelm, g
Regional Vice President,
North Central Region

Rolando De Cardenas,
Regional Vice President,
Northwest Region

David W. Neu,

Senior Vice President,
Retail Sales

and Marketing

Thomas P. Connolly,

Senior Vice President,
Health Systems Sales
and Marketing =

Michael Miller,
Regionat Vice President,
Southwest Region

Steven H. Collis,
Senior Vice President and President
of AmerisourceBergen Specialty Group
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Rodney H. Brady *“

President and Chief Executive Officer, Deseret Management Corporation

Mr. Brady, age 69, has been a Director of AmerisourceBergen since
August 2001. Prior to that, he was a Director of Bergen Brunswig
Corporation from 1973 until August 2001. He has served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of Deseret Management Corporation since 1996.
Prior to that, he was President and Chief Executive Officer of Bonneville
International Corporation from 1985 to 1996. His term expires in 2005.

Charles H. Cotros ™*

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Sysco Corporation

Mr. Cotros, age 65, was named to the AmerisourceBergen Board in
January 2002. Mr. Cotros served as Chairman of Sysco Corporation
since July 2000 and as Chief Executive Officer since January 2000
until his retirement in December 2002. Mr. Cotros held a variety of
positions with Sysco Corporation since 1974, including Chief Operating
Officer from 1995 until 2000 and President from 1999 until 2000.

His term expires in 2005.

Richard C. Gozon “*

Retired Executive Vice President, Weyerhaeuser Company

Mr. Gozon, age 64, has been a Director of AmerisourceBergen since
August 2001. Prior to that, he was a Director of AmeriSource Health
Corporation from 1994 until August 2001. He served as Executive Vice
President of Weyerhaeuser Company from 1994 until his retirement in
2002. Mr. Gozon is a Director of UGI Corporation, Triumph Group, Inc.
and AmeriGas Partners, L.P. His term on the AmerisourceBergen Board
expires in 2003.

Edward E. Hagenlocker ™ *

Retired Vice Chairman, Ford Motor Company

Mr. Hagenlocker, age 63, has been a Director of AmerisourceBergen

since August 2001. Prior to that, he was a Director of AmeriSource Health
Corporation from 1999 to August 2001. He served as Vice Chairman of
Ford Motor Company from 1996 until his retirement in 1999 and was
Chairman of Visteon Corporation from 1997 to 1999. He served as President
of Ford Automotive Operations from 1994 to 1996, and as Chairman of
Ford of Europe in 1996. Mr. Hagenlocker serves as a Director of Boise Cascade
Corporation, Air Products and Chemicals, Inc. and American Standard
Companies Inc. His term on the AmerisourceBergen Board expires in 2004.

Jane E. Henney, M.D. **

Senior Scholar in Residence, Association of Academic Health Centers

Dr. Henney, age 55, was named to the AmerisourceBergen Board in
January 2002. Dr. Henney is Senior Scholar in Residence at the Association
of Academic Health Centers in Washington, D.C. Prior to this appointment,
Dr. Henney was Commissioner of Food and Drugs at the United States
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) from 1998 to 2001. She was the
FDA's Deputy Commissioner of Operations from 1992 to 1994. A medical
oncologist, Dr. Henney has held several posts at the National Cancer
Institute, including Deputy Director from 1980 to 1985. She serves as

a Director of AstraZeneca PLC. Her term on the AmerisourceBergen Board
expires in 2005.

Robert E. Martini **

Chairman, AmerisourceBergen Corporation

Mr. Martini, age 70, has been Chairman of the Board of Directors of
AmerisourceBergen since August 2001. Prior to that, he was a Director

of Bergen Brunswig Corporation from 1962 until August 2001, and was
Chairman of the Bergen Board from 1992 until August 2001. Mr. Martini
was President of Bergen from 1981 to 1992; Chief Executive Officer from
1990 to 1997; a consuttant to Bergen from 1997 to 1999; and Chief
Executive Officer from 1999 to August 2001. He also serves as a Director
of Mossimo, Inc. His term on the AmerisourceBergen Board expires in 2004,

James R, Mellor **

Chairman, USEC, Inc.

Mr. Mellor, age 72, has been a Director of AmerisourceBergen since August
2001. Prior to that, he was a Director of Bergen Brunswig Corporation
from 1979 to August 2001. Mr. Mellor has served as Chairman of USEC, Inc.
since 1998. Prior to that, he was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of General Dynamics Corporation from 1993 to 1997, and President
and Chief Operating Officer from 1991 to 1993. He serves as a Director
of USEC, Inc., General Dynamics Corporation, Net2Phone, Inc., and
Computer Sciences Corporation. His term on the AmerisourceBergen
Board expires in 2003.

Francis G. Rodgers “*

Author and Lecturer

Mr. Rodgers, age 76, has been a Director of AmerisourceBergen since
August 2001. Prior to that, he was a Director of Bergen Brunswig
Corporation from 1982 to August 2001. Currently an author and lecturer,
Mr. Rodgers was formerly Vice President, Marketing for IBM Corporation.
Mr. Rodgers serves as a Director of Protegrity Inc. His term on the
AmerisourceBergen Board expires in 2004.

J. Lawrence Wilson *°

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Rohm and Haas Company
Mr. Wilson, age 66, has been a Director of AmerisourceBergen since
August 2001. Prior to that, he was a Director of AmeriSource Health
Corporation from January 2000 to August 2001. He served as Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Rohm and Haas Company from 1988
until his retirement in 1999. He serves as a Director of Cummins Inc.,
MeadWestvaco Corporation and The Vanguard Group of Investment
Companies. His term on the AmerisourceBergen Board expires in 2003.

R. David Yost >

Chief Executive Officer., AmerisourceBergen Corporation

Mr. Yost, age 55, has been a Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since August 2001. In addition, he served as President of the
Company from August 2001 to October 2002. Mr. Yost previously served
as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of AmeriSource Health Corporation
from December 2000 to August 2001 and as President and Chief Executive
Officer from May 1997 to December 2000. Prior to that, Mr. Yost had
served as Executive Vice President, Operations since 1995. Mr. Yost has
held a variety of sales, operational and executive positions since joining
an AmeriSource predecessor company in 1974. He serves as a director

of Aetna Inc. His term on the AmerisourceBergen Board expires in 2005.

Committees of the Board

! Audit and Corporate Responsibility Committee

2 Compensation and Succession Planning Committee
3 Executive and Finance Committee

4 Governance and Investment Committee

" Denotes Committee Chairman



Management's Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Cperations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto contained herein.

THE COMPANY

AmerisourceBergen Corporation (the “Company”) is a leading
national wholesale distributor of pharmaceutical products and
related healthcare services and solutions with approximately $40
billion in annual operating revenue. The Company was formed in
connection with the merger of AmeriSource Health Corporation
("AmeriSource”) and Bergen Brunswig Corporation (“Bergen”),
which was consummated on August 29, 2001 (the “Merger”).

The Company is organized based upon the products and services
it provides to its customers. The Company’s operating segments have
been aggregated into two reportable segments: Pharmaceutical
Distribution and PharMerica.

The Pharmaceutical Distribution segment includes
AmerisourceBergen Drug Company ("ABDC") and AmerisourceBergen
Specialty Group (“ABSG”). ABDC includes the full-service pharmaceu-
tical distribution facilities, American Health Packaging, AutoMed
Technologies, Inc. and other healthcare related businesses. ABDC
sells pharmaceuticals, over-the-counter medicines, health and beauty
aids, and other health-related products to hospitals, managed care
facilities, and independent and chain retail pharmacies. American
Health Packaging packages oral solid medications for nearly any
need in virtually all settings of patient care. ABDC also provides
promotional, inventory management, pharmacy automation and
information services to its customers. ABSG sells specialty
pharmaceutical products and services to physicians, clinics and
other providers in the oncology, nephrology, plasma and vaccines
sectors. ABSG also provides third party logistics and reimbursement
consulting services to healthcare product manufacturers.

The PharMerica segment consists solety of the Company's
PharMerica operations. PharMerica provides institutional pharmacy
products and services to patients in long-term care and alternate
site settings, including skilled nursing facilities, assisted living
facilities, and residential living communities. It also provides
mail order and on-line pharmacy services to chronically and
catastrophically ill patients under workers’ compensation
programs, and provides pharmaceutical claims administration
services for payors.

IMPACT OF THE MERGER

The Merger was accounted for as an acquisition of Bergen under
the purchase method of accounting using the guidelines for business
combinations issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Under the
purchase method of accounting, the estimated cost of approximately
$2.4 billion to acquire Bergen, including transaction costs, was
allocated to its underlying net assets based on their respective
estimated fair values. The $2.3 billion excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair value of the tangible net assets acquired
was recorded as goodwill and intangible assets.

COMPARATIVE PRO FORMA INFORMATICN FOR FISCAL 2001

The Company's fiscal 2001 results include a full year of
AmeriSource's results and approximately one month of Bergen's
results. In order to enhance comparability to the fiscal 2002 results,
we have included pro forma information for fiscal 2001 results of
operations. For purposes of this discussion, pro forma refers to
the combined results of AmeriSource and Bergen for fiscal 2001
and are not intended to be consolidated financial statements
of AmerisourceBergen prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, and do not
represent the consolidated results as if the Merger had occurred at
the beginning of fiscal 2001. In addition, they are not necessarily
indicative of the actual results which might have occurred had the
operations and management of AmeriSource and Bergen been
combined at the beginning of fiscal 2001. The following information
also includes the results of operations for the year ended September
30, 2001 on a pro forma basis by reportable segment.

To further improve the comparability between fiscal years, the
pro forma combined information for the year ended September 30,
2001 excludes amortization of goodwill (see Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements) and reflects the full allocation of
Bergen’s former Corporate segment to the Company’s Pharmaceutical
Distribution and PharMerica segments.

Such pro forma information and the related discussion is limited
to the line items comprising operating income. Due to the changes
in the Company’s debt structure which occurred in connection with
the Merger, pro forma combined interest expense for fiscal 2001
would not be directly comparable to the Company’s fiscal 2002
interest expense.

AmerisourceBergen Corporation




AmerisourceBergen Corporation

Summary Segment Information

Operating Revenue
Fiscal year ended September 30,

Ackwal Actual Pro forma Actual % Pro forma %
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 (1) Change Change
Pharmaceutical Distribution } 839,539,838 $15,770,042 $33,985,611 151% 16%
PharMerica ] 1,675,028 116,719 1,350,008 1,164% 9
Intersegment Eliminations (774,172) (64,126) (736,309) 5
Total $40,2460,714 $15,822,635 $34,599,310 154% 16%
S i Operating Income
LT Fiscal year ended September 30,
L hctwall | Actual Pro forma Actual % Pro forma %
(dollars in thousands) | 2001 2001 (1) Change Change
Pharmaceuticat Distribution '5@5@,T $274,209 $551,827 140% 19%
PharMerica 83,464 6,472 68,856 1,190% 21
Merger costs, facility consolidations and (
employee severance, and environmental e : ‘
remediation (“special items”) - (26,284) (21,305) (21,305)
Total $718,428 $259,376 $599,378 177% 20%
Percentages of operating revenue:
Pharmaceutical Distribution
Gross profit 3.87% 4.19% 4.13%
Operating expenses 2.20% 2.45% 2.51%
Operating income 1.67% 1.74% 1.62%
PharMerica
Gross profit 33.49% 34.06% 35.24%
Operating expenses 27.83% 28.51% 30.14%
Operating income 5.66% 5.55% 5.10%
AmerisourceBergen Corporation
Gross profit 5.03% 4.42% 5.44%
Operating expenses (2) 3.25% 2.79% 3.70%
Operating income (2) 1.79% 1.64% 1.73%

(1) Represents the combination of AmenSource Health Corporation’s and Bergen Brunswig Corporation’s financial information.
(2) Includes merger costs in fiscal 2002. Includes merger costs, the cost of facility consolidations and employee severance, and environmental

remediation in fiscal 2001.

Year ended September 30, 2002 compared with Year ended
September 30, 2001

Consolidated Results

Operating revenue, which excludes bulk deliveries, for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002 increased 154% to $40.2 billion
from $15.8 billion in the prior fiscal year. This increase is primarily
due to increased operating revenue in the Pharmaceutical
Distribution segment as a result of the Merger. Operating revenue
increased 16% from $34.6 billion in the prior fiscal year on a pro
forma combined basis. This increase is primarily due to the 16%
increase in the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment.

The Company reports as revenue bulk deliveries to customer
warehouses, whereby the Company acts as an intermediary in the

ordering and delivery of pharmaceutical products. As a result of the
Merger, bulk deliveries increased to $5.0 billion in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 compared to $368.7 million in the prior
fiscal year. Revenue from bulk deliveries increased 10% versus $4.5
billion in the prior fiscal year on a pro forma combined basis. Due to
the insignificant service fees generated from these bulk deliveries,
fluctuations in volume have no significant impact on operating
margins. However, revenue from bulk deliveries has a positive impact
to the Company's cash flows due to favorable timing between the
customer payments to us and the payments by us to our suppliers.
Substantially all of the Company's bulk deliveries were made to
Merck-Medco Managed Care LLC.

Gross profit of $2,024.5 million in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002 reflects an increase of 189% from $700.1 million




in the prior fiscal year on a historical basis and an increase of

8% from $1,880.7 million in the prior fiscal year on a pro forma
combined basis. As a percentage of operating revenue, gross profit
in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 was 5.03%, as compared
to prior-year percentages of 4.42% on a historical basis and 5.44%
on a pro forma combined basis. The increase in the gross profit
percentage from prior fiscal year historical results was primarily

due to the inclusion of PharMerica in the current year. PharMerica,
due to the nature of its prescription fulfillment business, has signifi-
cantly higher gross margins and operating expense ratios than the
Company’s Pharmaceutical Distribution segment. The decrease in
gross profit percentage in comparison with the prior fiscal year

pro forma combined percentage reflects declines in both the
Pharmaceutical Distribution and PharMerica segments due to
changes in customer mix and competitive selling price pressures.

Distribution, selling and administrative expenses, depreciation
and amortization (“DSAD&A") of $1,281.8 million in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 reflects an increase of 206% compared
to $419.4 million in the prior fiscal year on a historical basis and
an increase of 2% compared to $1,260.1 million in the prior fiscat
year on a pro forma combined basis. As a percentage of operating
revenue, DSAD&A in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 was
3.19%, as compared to prior fiscal year percentages of 2.65% on
a historical basis and 3.64% on a pro forma combined basis. The
increases in the DSAD&A percentage from the prior fiscal year
historical results were primarily due to the inclusion of PharMerica
in the current year, as explained above. The decrease in the DSAD&A
percentage from the prior fiscal year pro forma combined ratio
reflects improvements in both the Pharmaceutical Distribution and
PharMerica segments due to customer mix changes, operational
efficiencies and benefits from the merger integration effort.

In connection with the Merger, the Company has developed
integration plans to consclidate its distribution network and elimi-
nate duplicate administrative functions, which are expected to result
in synergies of approximately $150 miltion annually by the end of
the third year following the Merger. The Company's plan is to have
a distribution facility network consisting of 30 facilities in the next
four to five years. This will be accomplished by building six new
facilities, expanding seven facilities, and closing 27 facilities. During
fiscal 2002, the Company closed seven distribution facilities and is
planning to close an additional six facilities in fiscal 2003.

In September 2001, the Company announced plans to close
seven distribution facilities in fiscal 2002, consisting of six former
AmeriSource facilities and one former Bergen facility. A charge of
$10.9 million was recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001
related to the AmeriSource facilities, and included $6.2 million
of severance for approximately 260 warehouse and administrative
personnel to be terminated, $2.3 million in lease and contract
cancellations, and $2.4 million for the write-down of assets related
to the facilities to be closed. Approximately $0.2 million of costs
related to the Bergen facility were included in the Merger purchase
price allocation.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the Company
announced further integration initiatives relating to the closure of
Bergen's repackaging facility and the elimination of certain Bergen
administrative functions, including the closure of a related office
facility. The cost of these initiatives of approximately $19.2 million,
which included $15.8 million of severance for approximately 310
employees to be terminated, $1.6 million for lease cancellation
costs, and $1.8 million for the write-down of assets related to the
facilities to be closed, resulted in additional goodwill being recorded
during fiscal 2002.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, seven
distribution facilities and the repackaging facility were closed, and
355 employees were terminated. The Company paid a total of $15.6
million for employee severance and lease and contract cancellation
costs with respect to its integration initiatives during fiscal 2002.
Remaining unpaid amounts of $9.1 million for employee severance
and lease obligations are included in accrued expenses and other
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at September 30,
2002. Severance for some employees will be paid over periods of
up to eighteen months after their respective termination dates.

In September 2002, the Company announced the first of its six
facility closures planned for fiscal 2003. In December 2002, the
Company announced the second and third of the planned facility
closures. Employee severance and lease cancellation costs related
to the fiscal 2003 facility closures will be recognized in accordance
with the new provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities,” which the Company elected to adopt
early in September 2002. Employee severance costs will generally be
expensed during the employee service period and lease cancellation
and other costs will generally be expensed when the Company enters
into a contractual obligation. The Company expects to incur charges
of approximately $10 million to $12 million relating to these efforts
in fiscal 2003. Additional amounts for integration initiatives will be
recognized in subsequent periods as facilities to be consolidated are
identified and specific plans are approved and announced.

In connection with the Merger, the Company expensed merger
costs in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 of $24.2 million,
consisting primarily of integration consutting fees of $16.6 million.
The merger costs also include a $2.1 million increase to the
Company's fourth quarter fiscal 2001 charge of $6.5 million relating
to the accelerated vesting of AmeriSource stock options. Total
merger costs in fiscal 2001 amounted to $13.1 million, primarily
consisting of consulting fees and the accelerated stock option
vesting charge. Additional merger costs, including integration and
employee retention costs, will be charged to expense in subsequent
periods when incurred.

Operating income of $718.4 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002 reflects an increase of 177% from $259.4 million
in the prior fiscal year. Special items had the effect of reducing the
Company's operating income in the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002 and 2001 by $24.2 million and $21.3 million, respectively.

The Company's operating income as a percentage of operating
revenue was 1.79% in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002,

as compared to prior-year percentages of 1.64% on a historical basis
and 1.73% on a pro forma combined basis. The improvements are
due to the aforementioned DSAD&A expense percentage reductions
more than offsetting the reductions in gross margin.

Equity in losses of affiliates and other was $5.6 million and
$10.9 million in fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, respectively. The fiscal
2002 amount principally reflects an impairment of the Company’s
investment in a healthcare technology company. The majority of
the fiscal 2001 amount represents the impact of the Company’s
investment in Health Nexus, LLC, which was accounted for on the
equity method. The Company’s percentage ownership in the
successor to Health Nexus, LLC fell below 20% in November 2001,
and this investment is now accounted for using the cost method.

Interest expense, which includes the distributions on preferred
securities of a subsidiary trust, increased 194% in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 to $140.7 million compared to $47.9
million in the prior fiscal year, primarily as a result of the Merger.
Average borrowings under the Company’s debt facilities during the
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fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 were $2.2 billion as compared
to average borrowings of $746 million in the prior fiscal year.
Average borrowing rates under the Company’s variable-rate debt
facilities decreased to 3.5% in the current fiscal year from 6.2%

in the prior fiscal year, due to lower market interest rates.

Income tax expense of $227.1 million in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002 reflects an effective tax rate of 39.7% versus
38.3% in the prior fiscal year. The tax rate for fiscal 2002 was
higher than the prior fiscal year’s tax rate as a result of the Merger.

Net income of $344.9 million for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2002 reflects an increase of 179% from $123.8 million in the
prior fiscal year. Diluted earnings per share of $3.16 in the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002 reflects a 50% increase as compared
to $2.10 per share in the prior fiscal year. Special items had the
effect of reducing net income and diluted earnings per share for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 by $14.6 million and $0.13,
respectively and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 by
$13.1 million and $0.21, respectively. Diluted earnings per share
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 reflects the full-year
impact of the shares issued to effect the Merger.

Segment Information

Pharmaceutical Distribution Segment

Pharmaceutical Distribution operating revenue of $39.5 billion for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 increased 151% from $15.8
billion in the prior fiscal year on a historical basis and increased
16% from $34.0 billion in the prior fiscal year on a pro forma
combined basis. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002,
53% of operating revenue was from sales to institutional customers
and 47% was from retail customers; this compares to a customer
mix in the prior fiscal year of 53% institutional and 47% retail on a
historical basis and 52% institutional and 48% retail on a pro forma
combined basis. In comparison with prior fiscal year pro forma
combined results, sales to institutional customers increased by 19%
primarily due to higher revenues from mail order facilities, ABSG's
specialty pharmaceutical business and alternate site facilities. Sales
to retail customers increased 14% over the prior fiscal year on a pro
forma combined basis, principally due to higher revenues from
regional drug store chains, including the pharmacy departments of
supermarkets. This segment’s growth largely reflects national indus-
try economic conditions, including increases in prescription drug
usage and higher pharmaceutical prices. Operating revenue increased
18% in the first half of the year and 14% in the second half of the
year when compared to the same periods in the prior year on a pro
forma combined basis as the Company reached the April 2002
anniversary date of the addition of a large mail order customer.
Future operating revenue growth may be impacted by customer
consolidation and competition within the industry, as well as by
industry growth rates. Industry growth rates, as estimated by IMS
Healthcare, Inc., are expected to be between 11% and 14% over the
next four years, reflecting the impact of $35 billion of brand name
drug patent expirations expected between 2001 and 2005 and a
slowdown in the introduction of significant new drugs in 2003.

Pharmaceutical Distribution gross profit of $1,530.5 million
in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 increased 132% from
$660.4 million in the prior fiscal year on a historical basis and
increased 9% from $1,405.0 million in the prior fiscal year on a pro
forma combined basis. As a percentage of operating revenue, gross
profit in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 was 3.87%, as
compared to prior fiscal year percentages of 4.19% on a historical
basis and 4.13% on a pro forma combined basis. The year-to-year

dectines reflect the net impact of a number of factors, including the
change in customer mix to a higher percentage of large institutional,
mail order and chain accounts, and the continuing competitive
pricing environment, offset, in part, by higher buy-side margins than
in the prior year. Downward pressures on sell-side gross profit margin
are expected to continue and there can be no assurance that increas-
es in the buy-side component of the gross margin, including benefits
derived from manufacturer price increases and negotiated deals, will
be available in the future to fully or partially offset the anticipated
decline. The Company’s cost of goods sold includes a last-in, first-out
(“LIFO”) provision that is affected by changes in inventory quantities,
product mix, and manufacturer pricing practices, which may be
impacted by market and other external influences.

Pharmaceutical Distribution operating expenses of $871.3 million
in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 increased 126% from
$386.2 million in the prior fiscal year on a historical basis and
increased 2% from $853.1 million in the prior fiscal year on a pro
forma combined basis. As a percentage of operating revenue,
operating expenses in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 were
2.20%, as compared to prior-year percentages of 2.45% on a histori-
cal basis and 2.51% on a pro forma combined basis. These decreases
in expense percentages reflect the changing customer mix described
above, efficiencies of scale, the elimination of redundant costs
through the merger integration process and the continued emphasis
on productivity throughout the Company’s distribution network.

Pharmaceutical Distribution operating income of $659.2 million
in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 increased 140% from
$274.2 million in the prior fiscal year on a historical basis and
increased 19% from $551.8 million in the prior fiscal year on a pro
forma combined basis. As a percentage of operating revenue, operat-
ing income was 1.67% in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002,
as compared to prior-year percentages of 1.74% on a historical
basis, and 1.62% on a pro forma combined basis. The improvement
over the prior-year pro forma combined percentage was due to a
reduction in the operating expense ratio, which was greater than
the reduction in gross profit margin. The reduction of the operating
expense ratio was partially due to the Company’s ability to capture
synergy cost savings from the Merger. While management historically
has been able to lower expense ratios and expects to continue to
do so, there can be no assurance that reductions will occur in the
future, or that expense ratio reductions will exceed possible declines
in gross margins. Additionally, there can be no assurance that
merger integration efforts will proceed as planned and result in
the desired synergies.

PharMerica Segment

The PharMerica segment was acquired in connection with
the Merger and the historical amounts for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2001 are comprised of only one month of PharMerica’s
operating results. Accordingly, the discussion below focuses all
comparisons with the prior year on a pro forma combined basis.

PharMerica’s operating revenue increased 9% for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 to $1.48 billion compared to $1.35 billion
in the prior fiscal year. This increase is principally attributable to
growth in PharMerica’s workers’ compensation business, which has
grown at a faster rate than its long-term care business.

PharMerica’s gross profit of $494.0 million for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 increased 4% from gross profit of $475.8
million in the prior fiscal year. PharMerica’s gross profit margin
declined to 33.49% for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002
from 35.24% in the prior fiscal year. This decrease is primarily the
result of a change in the sales mix, with a greater proportion of
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PharMerica’s current year revenues coming from its workers’
compensation business, which has lower gross profit margins and
lower operating expenses than its long-term care business. In
addition, industry competitive pressures continue to adversely
affect gross profit margins.

PharMerica’s operating expenses of $410.5 million for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002 increased 1% from operating
expenses of $406.9 million in the prior fiscal year. As a percentage
of operating revenue, operating expenses were reduced to 27.83% in
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 from 30.14% in the prior
fiscal year. The percentage reduction is due to several factors,
including the aforementioned shift in customer mix towards the
workers’ compensation business, consolidation of technology
platforms, the consolidation or sale of several pharmacies, and
a reduction in bad debt expense.

PharMerica’s operating income of $83.5 million for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 increased 21% compared to operating
income of $68.9 million in the prior fiscal year. As a percentage of
operating revenue, operating income was 5.66% in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002, an increase of 56 basis points from
5.10% in the prior fiscal year. The year-to-year improvement in
the operating income percentage was due to the aforementioned
reductions in the operating expense ratio, which were greater than
the reductions in gross profit margin.

Intersegment Eliminations

These amounts represent the elimination of the Pharmaceutical
Distribution segment’s sales to PharMerica. AmerisourceBergen Drug
Company is the principal supplier of pharmaceuticals to PharMerica.

Year ended September 30, 2001 compared with Year ended
September 30, 2000

The accompanying historical consolidated statement of
operations and cash flows for fiscal 2000 and the consolidated
balance sheet as of September 30, 2000, reflect only the results
of AmeriSource, as predecessor to the Company. As a result, the
Company's historical operating results and cash flows for fiscal 2000
and the Company’s financial position as of September 30, 2000 are
not comparable to fiscal 2001 because of the Merger. Fiscal 2001
results include a full year of AmeriSource and approximately one
month of Bergen’s results. Accordingly, in order to enhance
comparability, the following discussion of results of operations
includes pro forma revenue information. For purposes of this
discussion, pro forma refers to the combined results of AmeriSource
and Bergen in each respective fiscal year.

Consolidated Results

Operating revenue, which excludes bulk deliveries, for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2001 increased 36% to $15.8 billion from
$11.6 billion in the prior fiscal year primarily due to increased
operating revenue in the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment.
Excluding the revenue impact from the Merger, operating revenue
increased 20% for the full fiscal year. On a pro forma combined basis
operating revenue increased 14% versus the prior year.

The Company reports as revenue bulk deliveries to customer
warehouses, whereby the Company acts as an intermediary in the
ordering and delivery of pharmaceutical products. As a result of the
Merger, bulk deliveries increased to $368.7 million in fiscal 2001
from $35.0 million in fiscal 2000. Excluding the impact from the
Merger, bulk deliveries would have decreased to $1.1 million for
fiscal 2001. On a pro forma combined basis, revenue from bulk
deliveries of $4.5 billion in fiscal 2001 increased 7% versus the prior

year. Due to the insignificant service fees generated from these bulk
deliveries, fluctuations in volume have no significant impact on
operating margins.

Gross profit of $700.1 million in fiscal 2001 increased by 35% as
compared to the prior year. As a percentage of operating revenue,
the gross profit in fiscal 2001 was 4.42% as compared t0 4.48% in
the prior year. The decline in gross profit percentage was primarily
the result of a 29 basis point decrease in the Pharmaceutical
Distribution segment, which was offset, in part, by the impact of the
inclusion of one month of PharMerica’s results. PharMerica, due to
the nature of its prescription fulfillment business, has significantly
higher gross margins and operating expense ratios than the
Company’s Pharmaceutical Distribution segment. Excluding the
impact of the Merger, gross profit increased 12% for the full fiscal
year, and as a percentage of operating revenue was 4.16% in fiscal
2001 as compared to 4.48% in the prior year.

Distribution, selling and administrative expenses, depreciation
and amortization increased by $100.9 million or 32% in fiscal 2001 as
compared to the prior year, and decreased as a percentage of operat-
ing revenue to 2.65% in fiscal 2001 from 2.74% in fiscal 2000 due to
a 29 basis point decrease in the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment
ratio offset in part by the inclusion of one month of PharMerica
results. Excluding the impact of the Merger, distribution, selling and
administrative expenses, and depreciation and amortization increased
7% for the full fiscal year, and decreased as a percentage of operat-
ing revenue to 2.44% in fiscal 2001 from 2.74% in fiscal 2000.

In connection with the Merger, the Company has developed
integration plans to consolidate its distribution network and
eliminate duplicate administrative functions, which are expected to
result in synergies of approximately $150 million annually at the end
of the third year following the Merger. The Company intends to
reduce the number of distribution facilities from 51 at September 30,
2001, to approximately 30 over the next four to five years and
announced plans to close seven facilities in fiscal 2002. A charge
of $10.9 million was recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001
related to these plans, and included $6.2 million of severance for
approximately 260 warehouse and administrative personnel to be
terminated, $2.3 million in lease cancellations, and $2.4 million
for the write-down of assets related to the facilities to be closed.
Accrued expenses of $7.1 million related to this charge are included
in the consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2001.

In connection with its acquisition of Bergen, the Company
incurred merger costs of $13.1 million in fiscal 2001, consisting
primarily of consulting fees of $5.6 million and a $6.5 million
charge for the accelerated vesting of AmeriSource stock options.

The Company is subject to contingencies pursuant to environmen-
tal laws and regulations at one of its former distribution centers that
may require the Company to make remediation efforts. In fiscal 1994,
the Company accrued $4.1 million to cover future consulting, legal,
remediation and ongoing monitoring costs. During fiscal 2001, envi-
ronmental reserves of $2.7 million were reversed into income based on
a new engineering analysis prepared by outside consultants that was
completed in September 2001. The remaining liability of $1.0 million
at September 30, 2001, is reflected in other liabilities in the accompa-
nying consolidated balance sheet. This accrued liability represents
the current estimate of the extent of contamination and choice of
remedy based on existing technology and presently enacted laws and
regulations. However, changes in remediation standards, improvements
in cleanup technology and discovery of additional information
concerning the site could affect the actual liability in the future.

During fiscal 2000, severance accruals of $1.1 million relating to
the fiscal 1999 facility consolidation and 1998 restructuring efforts
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were reversed into income after employees expected to be severed
either left the Company before receiving their benefits or were
retained in other positions within the Company.

Operating income of $259.4 million for the year ended September
30, 2001 increased by 28% from the prior year, primarily due to the
36% increase in operating income from the Pharmaceutical
Distribution segment and the inclusion of ane month of PharMerica’s
results due to the Merger, offset in part by the merger costs and
employee severance and facility consolidation costs.

Equity in losses of affiliates and other were $10.9 million in
fiscal 2001 and $0.6 million in fiscal 2000. These results primarily
reflect the full-year impact of the Company's equity investment in
HealthNexis, LLC that was accounted for on the equity method
and the write-down of the Company's investment in a technology
company. HealthNexis, LLC subsequently merged with the Global
Health Exchange, LLC in November 2001.

Interest expense of $47.9 million in fiscal 2001 represents an
increase of 14% compared to the prior year. This increase is primarily
attributable to the impact of the Merger offset by the positive
impact of $300.0 million of 5% fixed-rate convertible notes issued
by the Company in December of 2000 and a decrease of approximately
50 basis points in average borrowing rates under the Company’s
variable-rate debt facilities, which more than offset the increase in
average levels of debt. Excluding the impact of the Merger and the
related refinancings described below, average borrowings during the
year ended September 30, 2001 were $614 million as compared to
average borrowings of $612 million in the prior year.

Income tax expense of $76.9 million in fiscal 2001 reflected an
effective tax rate of 38.3% versus 38.0% in the prior fiscal year.
This slight increase in the effective rate reflects the inclusion of
one month of Bergen's operating results.

Net income of $123.8 million represents an increase of 25% over
the prior year. Special items had the effect of reducing net income
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 by $13.1 million and
increased net income for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000
by $0.7 million. Diluted earnings per share increased 11% to $2.10
per share as compared to $1.90 per share in the prior year. Diluted
earnings per share for fiscal 2001 includes the impact of the shares
issued to effect the Merger and the shares assumed issued under
the 5% convertible subordinated notes.

Segment Information

Pharmaceutical Distribution Segment

Operating revenue for the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 increased 36% to
$15.8 billion from $11.6 billion in the prior fiscal year. Excluding
the impact of the Merger, operating revenue increased 20%. During
the year ended September 30, 2001, 53% of operating revenue was
from sales to institutional customers and the remaining 47% was
from retail customers. In fiscal 2000, the customer mix was 51%
institutional and 49% retail. During the year ended September 30,
2001, sales to institutional customers increased 42% and sales to
retail customers increased 29%. Excluding the impact of the Merger,
institutional operating revenue increased 26% and retail operating
revenue increased 14%. The increase in institutional operating
revenue was primarily due to revenue growth with the Novation
group purchasing organization (“GP0”) and the Veterans
Administration as well as significant increases in the alternate site
customer group. During calendar 2000, members of the Novation GPO
went through a distributor selection process and, as a result, the
Company added over $500 million in annualized operating revenue

in fiscal 2001. Operating revenue from the Veterans Administration
accounted for approximately 30% of total institutional operating
revenue. Alternate site sales increased 54% during fiscal 2001 due
to the full-year impact of a mail order customer added in the third
quarter of the prior year which accounted for 20% of the increase.
In addition, numerous new alternate site accounts were added
during the year. The increase in retail operating revenue was
consistent with overall industry growth rates.

In the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment, gross profit of
$660.4 million in fiscal 2001 increased by 27% as compared to the
prior year. As a percentage of operating revenue, the gross profit in
fiscal 2001 was 4.19% as compared to 4.48% in the prior year. The
year-to-year decline reflects the net impact of a number of factors
including the change in customer mix to a higher level of larger
institutional, mail order and chain accounts, and the continuing
competitive pricing environment, offset, in part, by higher buy-side
margins than in the prior year. Gross profit was adversely impacted
in fiscal 2001 by a $5.6 million write down of inventory, primarily
related to the Company’s decision to exit the designer fragrance
business at its cosmetic distribution subsidiary.

Total operating expenses increased 21% in the Pharmaceutical
Distribution segment to $386.2 million, primarily as a result of the
Merger. As a percentage of operating revenue, operating expenses
decreased to 2.45% in fiscal 2001 from 2.74% in the prior year.
This decrease reflects the changing customer mix described above,
and efficiencies of scale, as well as the continued elimination of
costs and productivity improvements throughout the Company’s
distribution network.

Total operating income increased 36% in the Pharmaceutical
Distribution segment to $274.2 million. As a percentage of operating
revenue, operating income was 1.74% in fiscal 2001 and 1.73% in
the prior year, reflecting the net effect of the decline in gross margins
offset by the reduction in operating expenses discussed above.

PharMerica Segment

The PharMerica segment was acquired in connection with the
Merger and its aperating revenue of $116.7 million and operating
income of $6.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2001
reflects approximately one month of operating results. On a pro
forma combined basis, PharMerica’s fiscal 2001 operating revenue
increased 6% to $1.35 billion from $1.27 billion in the prior year.

Intersegment Eliminations

These amounts represent the elimination of the Pharmaceutical
Distribution segment’s sales to PharMerica. AmerisourceBergen Drug
Company is the principal supplier of pharmaceuticals to PharMerica.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are those accounting policies that
can have a significant impact on the presentation of the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations, and that require the
use of complex and subjective estimates based upon past experience
and management’s judgment. Because of the uncertainty inherent in
such estimates, actual results may differ from these estimates. Below
are those policies applied in preparing the Company’'s financial state-
ments that management believes are the most dependent an the
application of estimates and assumptions. For additional accounting
policies, see Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Trade receivables are primarily comprised of amounts owed to
the Company through its pharmaceutical service activities and are




presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. In determining
the appropriate allowance, the Company considers a combination of

factors, such as industry trends, its customers’ financial strength and
credit standing, and payment and default history. The calculation of
the required atlowance requires a substantial amount of judgment as
to the impact of these and other factors on the ultimate realization

of its trade receivables.

Merchandise Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost for
approximately 96% and 97% of the Company's inventories at
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, is determined using
the last-in, first-out (LIFQ) method. If the Company had used the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method of inventary valuation, which
approximates current replacement cost, inventories would have been
approximately $152.3 million and $91.7 million higher than the
amounts reported at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” as of October 1, 2001. Under SFAS No. 142, good-
will and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized;
rather, they are tested for impairment on at least an annual basis.
Accordingly, the Company ceased amortization of all goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives as of October 1, 2001.
Intangible assets with finite lives, primarily customer lists and
patents, will continue to be amortized over their useful lives.

SFAS No. 142 requires a two-step impairment test for goodwill.
The first step is to compare the carrying amount of the reporting
unit’s assets to the fair value of the reporting unit. If the fair value
exceeds the carrying value, no further work is required and no
impairment loss is recognized. If the carrying amount exceeds the
fair value then the second step is required to be completed, which
involves allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to each asset
and liability, with the excess being implied goodwill. An impairment
loss occurs if the amount of the recorded goodwill exceeds the
implied goodwill. The determination of the fair value of the
Company's reporting units is based, among other things, on
estimates of future operating performance of the reporting unit
being valued. The Company is required to complete an impairment
test for goodwill and record any resulting impairment losses annually.
Changes in market conditions, among other factors, may have an
impact on these estimates. The Company completed its required
annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 and
determined that there was no impairment.

Stock Options

The Company has the choice to account for stock options using
either Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25") or
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” The
Company has elected to use the accounting method under APB 25
and the related interpretations to account for its stock options.
Under APB 25, generally, when the exercise price of the Company’s
stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on
the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. Had
the Company elected to use SFAS No. 123 to account for its stock
options under the fair value method, it would have been required to
record compensation expense and as a result, diluted earnings per
share for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000
would have been lower by $0.10, $0.37, and $0.11, respectively. See
Note 8 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

The following table illustrates the Company’s debt structure at
September 30, 2002, including availability under revolving credit
facilities and receivables securitization facilities (in thousands):

Outstanding Additional
Balance Avaitability
Fixed-Rate Debt:
Bergen 7%% senior notes due 2003 $ 150,419 $ —
Bergen 7%% senior notes due 2005 99,758 —
8%% senior notes due 2008 500,000 —
PharMerica 8%% senior subordinated
notes due 2008 124,532 —
AmeriSource 5% convertible
subordinated notes due 2007 300,000 —
Bergen 6%% exchangeable subordinated
debentures due 2011 8,425 —
Bergen 7.80% trust preferred securities
due 2039 275,288 —
Other 3,891 —
Total fixed-rate debt 1,462,313 —
Variable-Rate Debt:
Term loan facility due 2003 to 2006 300,000 —
Blanco revolving credit facility due 2003 55,000 —
Revolving credit facility due 2006 — 937,615
AmeriSource receivables securitization
financing due 2004 - 400,000
Bergen receivables securitization financing
due 2005 — 450,000
Total variable-rate debt 355,000 1,787,615
Total debt, including
current portion $1,817,313 $1,787,615

The Company's working capital usage fluctuates widely during the
year, generally peaking in the second fiscal quarter due to seasonal
inventory buying requirements and buy-side purchasing opportunities.
During the second quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company’s highest
utilization was 79% of the aggregate availability under its revolving
credit facility and receivables securitization facilities, which are
described below. In fiscal 2003, the Company expects that its debt
utilization will again be at its highest in the second quarter due to
seasonal inventory buying requirements and buy-side purchasing
opportunities.

In November 2002, the Company issued $300 million of 7%%
senior notes due November 15, 2012 (the “7%% Notes”). The 7%%
Notes are redeemable at the Company's option at any time before
maturity at a redemption price equal to 101% of the principal
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated
damages, if any, to the date of redemption and, under some
circumstances, a redemption premium. Interest on the 7%% Notes
is payable semiannually in arrears, commencing May 15, 2003. The
7%% Notes rank junior to the Senior Credit Agreement (defined
below) and equal to the Company’s other senior unsecured notes
outstanding as of September 30, 2002. The Company intends to use
the net proceeds of the 7%% Notes to repay $15 million of the term
loan in December 2002 and $150 million in aggregate principal of
the Bergen 7%% senior notes due January 15, 2003. Additionally,
the Company intends to redeem the PharMerica 8%% senior subordi-
nated notes due 2008 at a redemption price equal to 104.19% of the
principal amount thereof. In connection with the issuance of the
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7Y% WNotes, the Company incurred approximately $4.9 million of
costs which were deferred and will be amortized over the ten-year
term of the notes.

In connection with the Merger, the Company issued $500 million
of 8%% senior notes due 2008 (the “8'%% Notes”} and entered
into a $1.3 billion senior secured credit facility (the “Senior Credit
Agreement”) with a syndicate of lenders. Proceeds from these
facilities were used to: replace existing AmeriSource and Bergen
revolving credit facilities; pay certain merger transaction fees and
fees associated with the financings; redeem $184.6 million of
PharMerica 8%% senior subordinated notes due 2008 via a tender
offer; and meet general corporate purposes. In addition, the
Company assumed $405.3 million of fixed debt. During fiscal
2002, the Company redeemed all $20.6 million of the Bergen 7%
convertible subordinated debentures due 2006 pursuant to a tender
offer required as a result of the Merger.

The 8'4% Notes pay interest semiannually in arrears and rank junior
to the Senior Credit Agreement. The 8%% Notes are redeemable at
the Company’s option at any time before maturity at a redemption
price equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued
and unpaid interest and tiquidated damages, if any, to the date of
redemption and, under some circumstances, a redemption premium.

The Senior Credit Agreement consists of a $1.0 billion revolving
credit facility (the “Revolving Facility™) and a $300 million term loan
facility (the “Term Facility”), both maturing in August 2006. The
Term Facility has scheduled maturities on a quarterly basis beginning
December 31, 2002, totaling $60 million in each of fiscal 2003 and
2004, and $80 million and $100 million in fiscal 2005 and 2006,
respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under the
Revolving Facility at September 30, 2002. Interest on borrowings
under the Senior Credit Agreement accrues at specified rates based
on the Company’s debt ratings. Such rates range from 1.0% to 2.5%
over LIBOR or 0% to 1.5% over prime. Currently, the rate is 1.5%
over LIBOR or .50% over prime. Availability under the Revolving
Facility is reduced by the amount of cutstanding letters of credit
($62.4 million at September 30, 2002). The Company pays quarterly
commitment fees to maintain the availability under the Revolving
Facility at specified rates based on the Company’s debt ratings rang-
ing from .25% to .50% of the unused availability. Currently, the rate
is .375%. The Senior Credit Agreement contains customary covenants
and restrictions as described in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Company can choose to repay or reduce its commit-
ments under the Senior Credit Agreement at any time. Substantially
all of the Company’s assets, except for trade receivables sold into
the AmeriSource and Bergen receivables securitization facilities
(as described below), collateralize the Senior Credit Agreement.

In connection with the issuance of the 8%% Notes and the
Senjor Credit Agreement, the Company incurred approximately $24.0
million of costs which were deferred and are being amortized over
the term of the respective issues.

In December 2000, the Company issued $300.0 million of 5%
convertible subordinated notes due December 1, 2007. The notes
have an annual interest rate of 5%, payable semiannually, and are
convertible into common stock of the Company at $52.97 per share
at any time before their maturity or their prior redemption or
repurchase by the Company. On or after December 3, 2004, the
Company has the option to redeem all or a portion of the notes
that have not been previously converted. Net proceeds from the
notes of approximately $290.6 million were used to repay existing
borrowings, and for working capital and other general corporate
purposes. In connection with the issuance of the notes, the
Company incurred approximately $9.4 million of financing fees

which were deferred and are being amortized over the seven-year
term of the notes.

At September 30, 2002, there were no borrowings under the
AmeriSource $400 million receivables securitization facility. The
facility has an expiration date of May 2004 and interest rates are
based on prevailing market rates for short-term commerciat paper
plus a program fee of 38.5 basis points. In order to borrow available
amounts under this securitization facility, a back-up 364-day
liquidity facility is required to be in place. The current liquidity
facility expires in May 2003, but the Company expects that it will
be renewed through May 2004. The $450 million Bergen receivables
securitization facility expires in December 2005, and interest rates
are based on prevailing market rates for short-term commercial paper
plus a program fee of 75 basis points. In December 2001, the
Company temporarily increased its availability under the Bergen
receivables securitization facility to $600 million through June 29,
2002. On June 30, 2002, the availability under the Bergen receiv-
ables securitization facility was reduced back to $450 million. In
December 2002, the Company obtained an increase to its availability
under the Bergen receivables securitization facility up to $700
million to fund discretionary inventory buying opportunities. The
Bergen receivables securitization facility may be subject to termina-
tion in the event of a material adverse effect, among other things,
on the financial condition, business, operations or prospects of
AmerisourceBergen. If a termination were to occur, a cross-default
might be triggered under the Senior Credit Agreement. Management
believes that the likelihood of such a termination being triggered is
remote. At September 30, 2002, there were no borrowings under
either of the receivables securitization facilities. The receivables
securitization facilities represent financing vehicles utilized by the
Company because of the availability of attractive interest rates
relative to other financing sources. The Company securitizes its trade
accounts and notes receivable, which are generally non-interest
bearing, in transactions that are accounted for as borrowings under
SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”

In connection with the Merger, the Company assumed Bergen’s
Capital I Trust (the “Trust”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bergen.
In May 1999, the Trust issued 12,000,000 shares of 7.80% trust
originated preferred securities (SM) (TOPrS(SM)) (the “Trust Preferred
Securities”) at $25 per security. The proceeds of such issuances were
invested by the Trust in $300 million aggregate principal amount of
Bergen's 7.80% subordinated deferrable interest notes due June 30,
2039 (the “Subordinated Notes”). The Subordinated Notes represent
the sole assets of the Trust and bear interest at the annual rate
of 7.80%, payable quarterly, and are redeemable by the Company
beginning in May 2004 at 100% of the principal amount thereof,
The Trust Preferred Securities will be redeemable upon any repayment
of the Subordinated Notes at 100% of the liquidation amount
beginning in May 2004. The obligations of the Trust related to the
Trust Preferred Securities are fully and unconditionally guaranteed
by the Company.

Holders of the Trust Preferred Securities are entitled to cumulative
cash distributions at an annual rate of 7.80% of the liquidation
amount of $25 per security. The Trust paid cash distributions of
$23.4 million during fiscal 2002. The Company, under certain
conditions, may cause the Trust to defer the payment of distributions
for successive periods of up to 20 consecutive quarters. During such
periods, accrued distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities will
compound quarterly at an annual rate of 7.80%. Also during such
periods, the Company may not declare or pay distributions on its
capital stock; may not redeem, purchase or make a liquidation




payment on any of its capital stock; and may not make interest, principal or premium payments on, or repurchase or redeem, any of its debt

securities that rank equal with or junior to the Subordinated Notes.

The Company’s operating results have generated sufficient cash flow which, together with borrowings under its debt agreements and credit
terms from suppliers, have provided sufficient capital resources to finance working capital and cash operating requirements, fund capital
expenditures, and fund the payment of interest on outstanding debt. The Company’s primary ongoing cash requirements will be to finance
working capital, fund the payment of interest on indebtedness, finance Merger integration initiatives and fund capital expenditures and
routine growth and expansion through new business opportunities. Future cash flows from operations and borrowings are expected to be

sufficient to fund the Company’s ongoing cash requirements.

Following is a summary of the Company’s contractual obligations for future principal payments on its debt and preferred securities,
minimum rental payments on its noncancelable operating leases and minimum payments on its other commitments at September 30, 2002

(in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Total Within 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years

Debt $1,840,800 $265,819 $241,228 $101,229 $1,232,524
Operating leases 155,421 51,553 62,521 28,882 12,465
Other commitments 14,936 8,936 6,000 — —
Total $2,011,157 $326,308 $309,749 $130,111 $1,244,989

The debt amounts in the above table differ from the related
carrying amounts on the consolidated balance sheet due to the
purchase accounting adjustments recorded in order to reflect
Bergen’s obligations at fair value on the effective date of the
Merger. These differences are being amortized over the terms
of the respective obligations.

In addition, the Company’s $150 million 7%% senior notes, which
are due in January 2003, and Blanco’s $55 million revolving credit
facility, which expires in May 2003, are included in the “Within 1
year” column in the above repayment table. However, these two
borrowings are not classified in the current portion of long-term
debt on the consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2002
because the Company has the ability and intent to refinance them
on a long-term basis as evidenced by the Company's November 2002
issuance of $300 million of 7%% senior notes due November 2012.
Additionatly, borrowings under the Puerto Rican facility are secured
by a standby letter of credit under the Senior Credit Agreement,
and therefore the Company is effectively financing this debt on
a long-term basis through that arrangement.

Other commitments include a future minimum payment of
$10 million, as described in Note 2 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, relating to the Company’s acquisition of a
physician management consulting company. The Company has paid
$5 million for a 20% equity interest and currently expects to pay
between $70 million and $80 million during fiscal years 2003
through 2005, of which $60 million to $70 million is contingent
upon the entity’s ability to achieve defined earnings targets, for its
100% equity ownership in the entity. The contingent payments are
not reflected in the above table. Additionally, as described in Note 2
to the Company's consolidated financial statements, the AutoMed
agreement and plan of merger provides for contingent payments
not to exceed $55 million, to be made based on AutoMed achieving
defined earnings targets through the end of calendar 2004. The
AutoMed contingent payments may be made in cash and/or
Company common stock at the discretion of the Company, and
are not reflected in the above table.

In connection with its merger integration plans, the Company
intends to build six new distribution facilities and expand seven
others over the next 3 to 4 years. The Company has begun to
enter into various commitments with third parties relating to site
selection, purchase of land, design and construction of the new
facilities. As of September 30, 2002, the Company has entered into

$4.9 million of commitments relating to the construction of the
new facilities. The facility commitments are included in Other
Commitments in the above table. In December 2002, the Company
entered into a 15-year lease obligation totaling $17.4 million for
one of the facilities.

During the year ended September 30, 2002, the Company’s
operating activities provided $535.9 million in cash as compared
to $45.9 million of cash used in fiscal 2001. Cash provided by
operations in fiscal 2002 was principally the result of $344.9 million
of net income and $190.0 million of non-cash items affecting net
income. Changes in operating assets and liabilities were only $1.0
million as a $362.2 million increase in merchandise inventories and
a $133.6 million increase in accounts and notes receivable were
offset primarily by a $514.1 million increase in accounts payable,
accrued expenses and income taxes. The increase in merchandise
inventories reflects inventory required to support the strong revenue
increase, as well as inventory purchased to take advantage of buy-
side gross profit opportunities including opportunities associated
with manufacturer price increases and negotiated deals. Inventory
grew at a rate less than sales due to the consolidation of seven
facilities in fiscal 2002 and improved inventory management.
Accounts and notes receivable, before changes in the allowance for
doubtful accounts, increased only 3%, despite the 16% increase in
operating revenues, on a pro forma combined basis. During the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002, the Company’s days sales outstand-
ing improved as a result of continued emphasis on receivables
management at the local level. Days sales outstanding for the
Pharmaceutical Distribution segment improved to 16.4 days in fiscal
2002 from 17.7 days in the prior year, on a pro forma combined
basis. Days sales outstanding for the PharMerica segment improved
to 43.5 days in fiscal 2002 from 53.4 days in the prior year, on a
pro forma combined basis. The $376.0 million increase in accounts
payable was primarily due to the merchandise inventory increase
as well as the timing of payments to suppliers. Operating cash uses
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 included $137.9
million in interest payments, inclusive of the cash distributions
on the Trust Preferred Securities, and $111.9 million in income tax
payments, net of refunds.

During the year ended September 30, 2001, the Company’s oper-
ating activities used $45.9 million in cash as compared to $216.6
million cash generated in fiscal 2000. Cash used in operations in
fiscal 2001 resulted from increases of $726.1 million in merchandise
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inventories and $151.6 million in accounts receivable partially offset
by an increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and income
taxes of $613.3 million. The increase in merchandise inventories
reflected necessary inventories to support the strong revenue
increase, and inventory purchased to take advantage of buy-side
gross profit margin opportunities including opportunities associated
with manufacturer price increases and negotiated deals. Additionally,
inventories at September 30, 2001 included safety stock purchased
due to uncertainties regarding possible increased customer demands
or disruptions in the supply stream as the result of the terrorist
events of September 11, 2001. The increase in accounts payable,
accrued expenses and income taxes is net of merger-related
payments of approximately $58.8 million, primarily executive
compensation payments made in August 2001.

During the year ended September 30, 2000, the Company's
operating activities generated $216.6 million in cash as compared
to $3.0 million generated in fiscal 1999. Cash generation from
operations in fiscal 2000 resulted from an increase of $416.0 million
in accounts payable, accrued expenses and income taxes offset by
increases in accounts receivable of $23.8 million and merchandise
inventories of $327.4 million. The increase in accounts payable,
accrued expenses and income taxes in excess of the increase in
merchandise inventories was due to a 4% increase in days payable
outstanding during the year due to the centralization of accounts
payable processing and the timing of vendor purchases. Accounts
receivable (net) increased only 2% despite the 19% revenue increase
due to the change in customer mix to quicker-paying health systems
customers and the collection of a disputed receivable. Merchandise
inventories increased 26% reflecting the changes in customer mix
and to support anticipated new customer contracts, including
additional business with the Novation group purchasing
organization, and seasonal buying opportunities.

The Company paid a total of $15.6 million, $2.9 million and
$3.6 million of severance, contract, and lease cancellation and other
costs in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, related to the cost
reduction plans discussed above. Severance accruals of $8.1 million
and remaining contract and lease obligations of $1.0 million at
September 30, 2002 are included in accrued expenses and other
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Capital expenditures for the vears ended September 30, 2002,
2001 and 2000 were $64.2 million, $23.4 million and $16.6 million,
respectively, and relate principally to investments in warehouse
improvements, information technology and warehouse automation.
We have developed merger integration plans to consolidate our
existing pharmaceutical distribution facitity network and establish
new, more efficient distribution centers. More specifically, our plan
is to have a distribution facility network consisting of 30 facilities.
We plan to accomplish this by building six new facilities, expanding
seven facilities, closing 27 facilities and implementing a new ware-
house operating system. Capital expenditures related to this plan are
expected to be approximately $300 miltion to $350 million over the
next 3 years. We anticipate that future cash flows from operations
along with our existing availability under our revolving credit facility
and receivables securitization facilities will be adequate to fund our
merger integration plans. The Company estimates that it will spend
approximately $100 million to $130 miltion for capital expenditures
during fiscal 2003.

During fiscal 2002, the Company acquired AutoMed Technologies,
Inc. for $120.4 million. The Company also acquired other smaller
businesses for $15.8 million. Additionally, the Company purchased
equity interests in various businesses for $4.1 million.

During fiscal 2001, the Company sold the net assets of one of its
specialty products distribution facilities for approximately
$13.0 miltion.

During fiscal 2000, the Company and three other healthcare
distributors formed an Internet-based company that is an independ-
ent, commercially neutral healthcare product information exchange
focused on streamlining the process involved in identifying,
purchasing and distributing healthcare products and services. The
Company contributed $1.2 million, $6.5 million and $3.7 million to
the joint venture in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and its
ownership interest of approximately 22% was accounted for under
the equity method. This entity merged in November 2001 with the
Global Health Exchange LLC, a similar venture, and the Company's
ongoing ownership interest in the Global Health Exchange, LLC is
4%. Since then, the Company has accounted for its share of the
joint venture using the cost method of accounting.

During the year ended September 30, 2002, the Company made
net repayments of $37.0 million on its receivables securitization
facilities. The Company also repaid debt of $23.1 million during the
year, principally consisting of $20.6 million for the retirement of
Bergen’s 7% debentures pursuant to a tender offer which was
required as a result of the Merger. Cash provided by financing
activities in fiscal 2001 primarily represents the net effect of
borrowings to fund working capital requirements, the refinancing
and merger costs described above. In fiscal 2000, cash used by
financing activities represented net repayments of the Company’s
revolving credit facility from cash provided by operations.

The Company paid its first quarterly dividend, a cash dividend of
$0.025 per share on common stock, on December 3, 2001. Dividends
of $0.025 per share were paid on March 1, 2002, June 3, 2002 and
September 3, 2002. A dividend of $0.025 per share was declared
by the board of directors on October 30, 2002, and was paid on
December 2, 2002 to stockholders of record at the close of business
on November 18, 2002. The Company anticipates that it will
continue to pay quarterly cash dividends in the future. However,
the payment and amount of future dividends remain within the
discretion of the Company’s board of directors and will depend
upon the Company's future earnings, financial condition, capital
requirements and other factors.

The Company’s most significant market risk is the effect of
changing interest rates. The Company manages this risk by using a
combination of fixed- and variable-rate debt. At September 30, 2002,
the Company had approximately $1.5 billion of fixed-rate debt with
a weighted average interest rate of 7.3% and $355 million of
variable-rate debt with a weighted average interest rate of 3.5%.
The amount of variable-rate debt fluctuates during the year based
on the Company’s working capital requirements. The Company
periodically evaluates various financial instruments that could
mitigate a portion of its exposure to variable interest rates.
However, there are no assurances that such instruments will be
available on terms acceptable to the Company. There were no such
financial instruments in effect at September 30, 2002. For every $100
million of unhedged variable-rate debt outstanding, a 35 basis-point
increase in interest rates (one-tenth of the average variable rate at
September 30, 2002) would increase the Company's annual interest
expense by $0.35 million.

RECENTLY ISSUED FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB")
issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” As
of October 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, which
revised the accounting and financial reporting standards for goodwill




and other intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized; rather, they
are tested for impairment on at least an annual basis. In accordance
with the transition provisions of SFAS No. 142, the Company did not
amortize goodwill arising from the Merger in fiscal 2001. In fiscal
2002, the Company discontinued the amortization of all goodwill.
Had the Company not amortized goodwill during fiscal 2001 and
2000, net income for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and
2000 would have been approximately $0.9 million and $0.6 million
higher than the reported amounts, respectively, and diluted earnings
per share would have been $0.02 higher than the reported amount
in each year. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company was required
to complete an initial impairment test of goodwill within six months
of adopting the standard, with any impairment charges recorded as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The Company
completed its initial impairment test in the quarter ended March 31,
2002 and determined that no impairment existed. The Company
completed its annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2002 and determined that no impairment existed.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This standard
sets forth the accounting for the impairment of long-lived assets,
whether they are held and used or are disposed of by sale or
other means. It also broadens and modifies the presentation of
discontinued operations. The standard will be effective for the
Company’s fiscal year 2003, although early adoption is permitted,
and its provisions are generally to be applied prospectively. The
Company does not believe this standard will have a material impact
on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statement
supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs Incurred in a Restructuring.” This standard addresses the
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit
or disposal activities. These costs relate to termination benefits
provided to current employees that are involuntarily terminated,
costs to terminate a contract, and costs to consolidate facilities or
relocate employees. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost
associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the
liability is incurred. Under SFAS No. 146, an entity’s commitment
to a plan does not by itself create an obligation that meets the
definition of a liability. SFAS No. 146 also establishes fair value as
the objective for the initial liability. The standard will be effective
for exit costs or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002, although early adoption is encouraged. The Company elected
to adopt this standard in September 2002. The adoption of this
standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2002. We have traditionally recognized certain costs
associated with restructuring plans as of the date of commitment
to the plan. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 could result in the
deferral of recognition of such costs for restructuring plans from
the date we commit to a plan to the date we actually incur the
costs associated with a plan.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained in this Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and elsewhere in this report are “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. These statements are
based on management's current expectations and are subject to
uncertainty and changes in circumstances. Actual results may vary
materially from the expectations contained in the forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements herein include
statements addressing management's views with respect to future
financial and operating results and the benefits and other aspects
of the merger between AmeriSource Health Corporation and Bergen
Brunswig Corporation. Various factors, including competitive
pressures, success of integration, restructuring or systems initiatives,
market interest rates, regulatory changes, changes in customer mix,
changes in pharmaceutical manufacturers' pricing and distribution
policies, changes in U.S. Government policies, customer insolvencies,
or the loss of one or more key customer or supplier relationships,
could cause actual outcomes and results to differ materially from
those described in forward-looking statements. Certain additional
factors that management believes could cause actual outcomes and
results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking
statements are set forth in Item 1 {Business) of the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002 under the heading “Certain Risk Factors” and elsewhere in that
Form 10-K.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

AmerisourceBergen Corporation

September 30, 2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 8 663,340 $ 297,626
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts:

2002 — $181,432; 2001 — $188,586 2,222,156 2,142,663
Merchandise inventories 5,437,878 5,056,257
Prepaid expenses and other 26,283 15,956

Total current assets 3,348,637 ,r 7,512,502

i
Property and equipment, at cost:
Land 24,052 25,177
Buildings and improvements 154,394 129,436
Machinery, equipment and other 203,154 223,583

Total property and equipment 422,500 378,196
Less accumulated depreciation 139,922 88,627

Property and equipment, net 282,578 289,569

Other assets:
Goodwill 2,205,159 2,125,258
Deferred income taxes 12,400 22,326
Intangibles, deferred charges and other 363,238 341,590
Total other assets 2,550,797 | 2,489,174
T

TOTAL ASSETS

$10,291,245

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLBERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $§ 5,367,837 $ 4,991,884
Accrued expenses and other 433,838 359,131
Current portion of long-term debt 0,818 2,468
Accrued income taxes 31,855 16,655
Deferred income taxes 205,071 162,315
Total current liabilities 6,099,517 5,532,453
T
Long-term debt, net of current portion 1,736,484 1,871,911
Other liabilities 40,663 48,317
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value — authorized: 300,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding: 2002: 106,581,837 shares; 2001: 103,544,519 shares 1,068 1,035
Additional paid-in capital 2,858,596 2,709,687
Retained earnings 462,619 } 128,178
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,843) ‘ (336)
Total stockholders’ equity 3,356,938 | 2,838,564
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $12,213,012 $10,291,245

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




L . . )
Consclidated Statements of Operafions

(in thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 2000
QOperating revenue $40,240,714 $15,822,635 $11,609,995
Bulk deliveries to customer warehouses 4,094,080 368,718 35,026
Total revenue 43,284,704 16,191,353 11,645,021
Cost of goods sold 48,210,520 15,491,235 11,125,440
Gross profit 2,006,674 700,118 519,581
Operating expenses:
Distribution, selling and administrative 1,220,631 397,848 302,470
Depreciation 58,250 18,604 14,129
Amortization 2,009 2,985 1,980
Merger costs 28,264 13,109 —
Facility consolidations and employee severance = 10,912 (1,123)
Environmental remediation = (2,716) —
Operating income 708,428 259,376 202,125
Equity in losses of affiliates and other 5,647 10,866 568
Interest expense 140,784 47,853 41,857
Income before taxes 572,047 200,657 159,700
Income taxes 227,906 76,861 60,686
Net income ¢ 344,961 $ 123,796 $ 99,014
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 329 $ 2.16 $ 1.92
Diluted $ 3,16 $ 2.10 $ 1.90
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 104,935 57,185 51,552
Diluted 112,228 62,807 52,020

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes

in Stockholders” Equity

(in thousands, except per share data)

(Accumulated Accumulated Treasury

Additional Deficit) Other Stock
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive and
Stock Capital Earnings Loss Other Total
September 30, 1999 $ 578 $ 266,737 $ (94,632) $ - $(6,406) § 166,277
Net income 99,014 99,014
Exercise of stock options 10 11,914 11,924
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 4,893 4,893
Collections on ESOP note 186 186
September 30, 2000 588 283,544 4,382 — (6,220) 282,294
Net income 123,796 123,796
Other comprefiensive loss, net of tax benefit (336) (336)
Total comprehensive income 123,460
Exercise of stock options 13 30,822 30,835
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options - 14,448 14,448
Retirement of treasury shares (67) (6,153) 6,220 —
Issuance of stock to effect Merger 501 2,301,160 2,301,661
Assumption of stock options in
connection with Merger 78,251 78,251
Accelerated vesting of stock options 7,546 7,546
Amortization of unearned compensation '
from stock options 69 69
September 30, 2001 1,035 2,709,687 128,178 (336) — 2,838,564
Net income 344,941 344,941
Additional minimum pension liability,
net of tax benefit of $3,908 (5,943) (5,943)
Change in unrealized loss on investments,
net of tax of $212 . 336 336
Total comprehensive income 339,334
Cash dividends declared, $0.10 per share (10,500) (10,500)
Exercise of stock options 31 101,478 101,509
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 43,488 43,488
Restricted shares earned by directors 233 233
Shares issued pursuant to a stock purchase plan 474 474
Accelerated vesting of stock options 2,413 2,413
Amortization of unearned compensation from
stock options 823 823
September 30, 2002 ] $1,066 $2,858,596 $462,619 $(5.,943) $ — $3,316,338

AmerisourceBergen Corporation

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 2000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 344,941 $ 123,796 $ 99,014
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 58,250 18,604 14,129
Amortization, including amounts charged to interest expense 8,328 6,110 3,291
Provision for loss on accounts receivable 55,664 21,105 10,274
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 3,055 183 66
Equity in losses of affiliates and other 5,647 10,866 568
Provision for deferred income taxes 45,853 24,334 25,824
Write-downs of assets = 2,355 —
Employee stock compensation 3,236 7,546 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding
the effects of acquisitions and disposition:
Accounts and notes receivable (183,629) (151,602) (23,811)
Merchandise inventories (362,195) (726,141) (327,351)
Prepaid expenses and other (42,649) 3,672 (1,323)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and income taxes 514,342 613,304 415,961
Other , (5,717) 14 (62)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 385,926 (45,854) 216,580
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures | (64,138) (23,363) (16,619)
Cash acquired in Merger, less transaction costs = 133,818 —
Cost of acquired companies, net of cash acquired (136,223) — (3,032)
Purchase of equity interests in businesses (4,136) (6,642) (3,660)
Collections on ESOP note receivable = — 186
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 4,608 684 1,636
Proceeds from sale of a business = t 12,993 —
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES /&mn@» i 117,490 (21,489)
|
FINANCING ACTIVITIES |
Net repayments under revolving credit and receivables
securitization facilities | (37,000) (368,000) (145,227)
Long-term debt borrowings | == 1,100,000 —
Long-term debt repayments (28,128) (625,376) (225)
Deferred financing costs and other i 1,72 (32,287) (242)
Exercise of stock options | 105,509 30,835 11,924
Cash dividends on Common Stock {10,500) — -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 32,602 105,172 (133,770)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 365,714 176,808 61,321
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 207,626 120,818 59,497
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR % @@303@@k l $ 297,626 $ 120,818

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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\Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2002

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company is a wholesale distributor of pharmaceuticals
and related healthcare products and services, and also provides
pharmaceuticals to long-term care and workers’ compensation
patients. For further information on the Company’s operating
segments, see Note 13.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of AmerisourceBergen Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of the dates and for the fiscal years
indicated. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

The Company was formed in connection with the merger of
AmeriSource Health Corporation (“AmeriSource”) and Bergen
Brunswig Corporation (“Bergen”), which was consummated on
August 29, 2001 (the “"Merger”), as described further in Note 2.

As a result of the Merger, AmeriSource and Bergen became wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Effective October 1, 2002,
the Company effected an internal reorganization merging several
of its subsidiaries. In particular, Bergen was merged with and
into AmeriSource and AmeriSource changed its name to
AmerisourceBergen Services Corporation. In addition, Bergen
Brunswig Drug Company was merged with and into AmeriSource
Corporation and AmeriSource Corporation changed its name to
AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual amounts could differ from these estimated amounts.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior-year amounts
in order to conform to the current-year presentation.

Business Combinations

Business combinations accounted for under the purchase method
of accounting include the results of operations of the acquired
businesses from the dates of acquisition. Net assets of the
companies acquired are recorded at their fair value to the
Company at the date of acquisition (see Note 2).

Cash Equivalents
The Company classifies highly liguid investments with maturities
of three months or less at the date of purchase as cash equivalents.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company sells its merchandise inventories to a large number
of customers in the healthcare industry, including independent
community pharmacies, chain drugstores, mail order facitities, health
systems and other acute-care facilities, and alternate site facilities
such as clinics, nursing homes, and other non-acute care facilities.
The financial condition of the Company’s customers, especially those
in the health systems and nursing home sectors, can be affected by
changes in government reimbursement policies as well as by other
economic pressures in the healthcare industry.

The Company’s trade accounts receivable are exposed to credit
risk, but the risk is moderated because the customer base is diverse
and geographically widespread. The Company performs ongoing

credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and maintains
reserves for potential bad debt losses. For fiscal 2002, 2001 and
2000, sales to the Federal government, which are principally
included in the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment, represented
approximately 9%, 16% and 20%, respectively, of operating revenue.
No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of the
Company's operating revenue. Revenues generated from the
Company’s sales to Merck-Medco Managed Care LLC in fiscal

2002 were 11% of total revenue and 99% of butk deliveries to
customer warehouses.

The Company maintains cash balances and cash equivalents with
several large creditworthy banks and money-market funds located in
the United States. Accounts at each bank are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $100,000. The Company does
not believe there is significant credit risk related to its cash and
cash equivalents.

Investments

The Company uses the equity method of accounting for its
investments in entities in which it has significant influence;
generally this represents an ownership interest of between 20% and
50%. The Company’s investments in marketable equity securities in
which the Company does not have significant influence are classified
as “available for sale” and are carried at fair value, with unrealized
gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in the accumu-
lated other comprehensive loss component of stockholders” equity.

Merchandise Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost for
approximately 96% and 97% of the Company’s inventories at
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, was determined using the
last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. If the Company had used the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method of inventory valuation, which approximates
current replacement cost, consolidated inventories would have been
approximately $152.3 million and $91.7 million higher than the
amounts reported at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated on
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, which range from 3 to 40 years.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when products are delivered to
customers. Service revenues are recognized as services are performed
and when there are no further obligations to the customer for the
services provided. Revenues as reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations are net of sales returns and
allowances. The Company recognizes sales returns as a reduction of
revenue and cost of sales for the sales price and cost, respectively,
when products are returned. The Company’s customer return poticy
generally allows customers to return products only if the products
can be resold at full value or returned to suppliers for credit.

Along with other companies in the pharmaceutical distribution
industry, the Company reports the gross dollar amount of bulk
deliveries to customer warehouses in revenue and the related costs
in cost of goods sold. Bulk delivery transactions are arranged by the
Company at the express direction of the customer, and involve either
shipments from the supplier directly to customers” warehouse sites or
shipments from the supplier to the Company for immediate shipment
to the customers’ warehouse sites. Gross profit earned by the
Company on bulk deliveries was not material in any year presented.




Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs include all costs to warehouse, pick,
pack and deliver inventory to customers. These costs, which were
$374.5 million, $173.4 million and $143.7 million for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, are
included in distribution, selling and administrative expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company follows Accounting Principles Board (“APB")
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock-based
compensation (see Note 8).

Recently Issued Financial Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” As of October 1, 2001,
the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, which revises the accounting
and financial reporting standards for goodwill and other intangible
assets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives are not amortized; rather, they are tested for impair-
ment on at least an annual basis. In accordance with the transition
provisions of SFAS No. 142, the Company did not amortize goodwill
arising from the Merger in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2002, the Company
discontinued the amortization of all goodwill. Had the Company not
amortized goodwill during fiscal 2001 and 2000, net income for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 would have been
approximately $0.9 million and $0.6 million higher than the reported
amounts, respectively, and diluted earnings per share would have
been $0.02 higher than the reported amount in each year. Pursuant
to SFAS No. 142, the Company was required to complete an initial
impairment test of goodwill within six months of adopting the
standard, with any impairment charges recorded as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle. The Company completed
its initial impairment test in the quarter ended March 31, 2002 and
determined that no impairment existed. The Company completed its
annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 and
determined that no impairment existed.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This standard
sets forth the accounting for the impairment of long-lived assets,
whether they are held and used or are disposed of by sale or other
means. It also broadens and modifies the presentation of discontinued
operations. The provisions of SFAS No. 144 are generally to be
applied prospectively. The Company does not believe this standard
will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statement
supersedes Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs Incurred in a Restructuring.” This standard addresses the
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities. These costs relate to termination benefits provided
to current employees that are involuntarily terminated, costs to
terminate a contract, and costs to consolidate facilities or relocate
employees. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated
with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is
incurred. Under SFAS No. 146, an entity’s commitment to a plan
does not by itself create an obligation that meets the definition of a
Liability. SFAS No. 146 also establishes fair value as the objective for
the initial liability. The standard will be effective for exit costs or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, although early

adoption is encouraged. The Company elected to adopt this standard
in September 2002. The adoption of this standard did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002. The Company has
traditionally recognized certain costs associated with restructuring
plans as of the date of commitment to the plan. The adoption of
SFAS No. 146 could result in the deferral of recognition of such costs
for restructuring plans from the date we commit to a plan to the
date we actually incur the costs associated with a plan.

Note 2. Acquisitions

Merger

The merger of AmeriSource and Bergen was consummated on
August 29, 2001, upon the affirmative vote of the AmeriSource and
Bergen stockholders. The Merger occurred pursuant to a merger
agreement between AmeriSource and Bergen dated March 16, 2001.
In connection with the Merger, the AmeriSource stockholders
received one share of the Company’s common stock for each
AmeriSource common share, while the Bergen stockholders received
0.37 of a share of Company common stock for each Bergen common
share. As a result, AmeriSource and Bergen became wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company and the stockholders of AmeriSource
and Bergen became the stockholders of the Company.

The Merger was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting for business combinations pursuant to SFAS No. 141,
“Business Combinations.” Since the former AmeriSource stockholders
owned approximately 51% of the Company immediately after the
Merger (with the former Bergen stockholders owning the remaining
49%), the Company accounted for the Merger as an acquisition by
AmeriSource of Bergen. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements include (a) the financial information of
AmeriSource for all periods presented and (b) the results of
operations and other information for Bergen since August 29, 2001.

There were a number of reasons AmeriSource and Bergen decided
to merge, including (a) the strategic and geographic fit between the
two companies and the complementary nature of their respective
customer bases and (b) the opportunity for an increase in operating
cash flow through synergies such as the consolidation of distribution
facilities and related working capital improvements, the elimination
of duplicate administrative functions, and generic pharmaceutical
inventory purchasing efficiencies.

Following is a summary of the aggregate purchase price
(in thousands):

Market value of Company common stock issued
to Bergen stockholders, including cash paid

for fractional shares $2,301,871

Fair value of Bergen's stock options, net of
unearned compensation 78,251
Transaction costs 21,604
Total purchase price $2,401,726

The Company issued approximately 50.2 million shares of its
common stock in exchange for approximately 135.7 million
outstanding common shares of Bergen, based on the aforementioned
exchange ratio of 0.37 to 1. The Company’s common stock was
valued based on a price per share of $45.86, which was the
weighted-average market price of the AmeriSource common stock
during the few days before and after March 19, 2001, the date the
Merger was publicly announced.

AmerisourceBergen Corporation (gl
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AmerisourceBergen Corporation

The Company issued options to purchase approximately 3.5
miltion shares of its common stock in exchange for all of the
outstanding options of Bergen, based on a weighted-average fair
value of $23.29 per option. The fair value of the options, which
amounted to $80.7 million, was determined using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model and was based on a weighted-average exercise
price of $36.63 and the following weighted-average assumptions:
expected volatility — 0.509; expected life — 4 years; risk-free
interest rate — 4.64%; and expected dividend yield — 0.21%.

For purposes of determining the purchase price, this amount
was reduced by approximately $2.4 million, which represents
the intrinsic value of the options for approximately 0.3 million
shares which were unvested at the merger date; such unearned
compensation is being amortized to expense over the remaining
vesting period of approximately three years.

In connection with the Merger, the Company refinanced a
significant portion of its outstanding debt. This refinancing included
the issuance of new senior term debt, the consummation of a new
bank credit facility, the repayment of amounts outstanding under
the previous bank credit facilities of AmeriSource and Bergen, and
the repurchase of certain Bergen term debt. For further explanation
of the refinancing, see Note 5.

The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase
price based on the estimated fair values of Bergen’s assets and
liabilities at the effective date of the Merger (in thousands):

Cash $ 155,422
Accounts receivable 1,397,157
Inventories 2,766,297
Property and equipment 221,762
Intangible assets 220,846
Other assets 134,202
Goodwill 2,085,101
Current and other liabilities (3,224,927)
Long-term debt (prior to the refinancing

described in Note 5) (1,354,134)

Total purchase price $ 2,401,726

Substantially all of the acquired intangible assets represent
amounts assigned to registered trade names, which have an
indefinite life and are not subject to amortization.

Of the $2.1 billion of goodwill arising from the Merger, $1.8
billion was allocated to the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment
and $271.1 million to the PharMerica segment. During the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002, adjustments were made to reduce
goodwill arising from the Merger by $14.4 million for the
Pharmaceutical Distribution segment and $2.1 million for the
PharMerica segment. For further explanation, see Note 4.
Approximately $317.9 million of goodwill is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The following table shows the Company’s pro forma consolidated
results of operations for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2001
and 2000, assuming the Merger had occurred at the beginning of the
respective year (in thousands):

(Unaudited)
Pro Forma
Fiscal year ended
September 30,
2001 2000

Operating revenue $34,599,310 $30,335,606
Bulk deliveries to
customer warehouses 4,532,479 4,252,317
Total revenue $39,131,789 $34,587,923
Net income $ 251,936 $ 150,312
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 2.44 $ 1.48
Dituted $ 2.38 $ 1.48

The above unaudited pro forma operating results are based upon the

following principal assumptions:

(1) Bergen’s historical financial results were included for the entire
fiscal year.

(2) Bergen's historical operating expenses (principally depreciation
and amortization) were revised based on the adjustment of the
related assets and liabilities to their fair value.

(3) Historical goodwill amortization expense and goodwill
impairment charges were eliminated.

(4) Interest expense was revised for the effect of the assumed
consummation of the aforementioned refinancing at the
beginning of the respective periods. Interest for fixed-rate debt
was calculated based upon the fixed rates of the new debt,
while interest for variable-rate debt was calculated based on the
historical benchmark rates (such as LIBOR) plus the spreads set
forth in the new bank credit facilities. Historical borrowing
levels were adjusted upward to reflect the assumed payment of
merger costs, financing costs, and certain executive compensation
and benefits on the effective date of the Merger. Amortization
of deferred financing costs was adjusted to reflect the costs and
terms of the new bank credit facilities and debt issued.

(5) The provision for income taxes was adjusted for the tax effect
of the foregoing pretax adjustments.

(6) Earnings per share were adjusted to reflect the issuance of
the Company’s common stock in connection with the Merger.
Diluted earnings per share were also adjusted for the dilutive
effect of the Bergen stock options which were outstanding
during the periods.

The pro forma operating results do not reflect any anticipated
operating efficiencies or synergies and are not necessarily indicative
of the actual results which might have occurred had the operations
and management of AmeriSource and Bergen been combined during
the two fiscal years. In addition, the pro forma operating results do
not include any expenses associated with merger-related facility
consolidations, employee severance or other integration activities.

AutoMed Technologies, Inc.

On July 15, 2002, the Company acquired all of the outstanding
stock of AutoMed Technologies, Inc. (“AutoMed”), a leading provider
of automated pharmacy dispensing equipment with annual revenues




of approximately $60 million, for a cash payment of approximately
$120 million, which included the repayment of AutoMed’s debt of
approximately $52 million. The agreement and plan of merger
provides for contingent payments, not to exceed $55 million, to be
made based on AutoMed achieving defined earnings targets through
the end of calendar 2004. The Company has the option to make
these payments in cash or in shares of Company common stock. The
initial allocation of the purchase price, subject to adjustment, was
based on the estimated fair values of AutoMed's assets and liabilities
at the effective date of the acquisition and was allocated as follows:
tangible assets of $22 million, goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets of $110 million and liabilities of $12 million. Substantially all
of the goodwill and identifiable intangible assets are tax deductible.
AutoMed's results of operations have been included as a compenent
of the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment from the date of the
acquisition. AutoMed’s net income from the date of the acquisition
to September 30, 2002 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s net income or earnings per share for fiscal 2002.

Other Investments

In May 2002, the Company's Pharmaceutical Distribution segment
acquired a 20% equity interest in a physician management consulting
company for $5 million in cash, subject to a possible adjustment
contingent on the entity achieving defined earnings targets in
calendar 2002. The Company currently expects that there will be a
$2 million increase in the purchase price related to the acquisition
of the first 20% equity interest. Additionally, the Company has
agreed to acquire, within the next two years, the remaining 80%
equity interest for a minimum of $10 million, subject to adjustment
contingent on the achievement of defined earnings targets. The
Company currently expects to pay between $20 million and $30
million for the next 40% equity interest to be acquired in the third
quarter of fiscal 2003. Under the terms of the acquisition agreement,
the total purchase price for 100% equity ownership of the entity
shall not exceed $100 million and is based on the entity’s earnings
during calendar years 2002 through 2004. The Company currently
expects to pay between $70 million and $80 million, in the
aggregate, for its 100% equity ownership in the entity. The initial
20% investment has been accounted for using the equity method
of accounting.

Note 3. Income Taxes
The income tax provision is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended

September 30, | 2002 2001 2000
Current provision: \ |
Federal | 156,467 $46,390 $30,110
State and local ;30,766 6.137 4,752
| 184,253 52,527 34,862
\
Deferred provision: W \
Federal 4,574 [ 21,585 22,655
State and local | 4,279 2,749 3,169
| 45,853 24,334 25,824
Provision for L -
income taxes | $227,706 $76,861 $60,686
[E .

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the
effective income tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal year ended

September 30, L e | 2001 2000
1 - T
Statutory federal \
income tax rate 0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local income tax )‘ {
rate, net of federal ; ;
tax benefit \ 26 | 2.9 3.2
Other 24 \ 4 (.2)
Effective income tax rate J 85.7% | 38.3% 38.0%
[

Deferred income taxes reflect the future tax consequences of
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their financial reporting amounts. Significant components of
the Company's deferred tax liabilities (assets) are as follows
(in thousands):

r‘__—_—T
‘ 2002

September 30, i \ 2001
Inventory \ $ 347,21% \‘ $ 345,435
Property and equipment | 23,648 | 20,043
Goodwill i 17,128 | 1,044
Other L 276 | 25,323
Gross deferred tax liabilities | 406,703 | 391,845
Net operating losses and | o \
tax credit carryovers \ (42,508} | (86,066)
Capital loss carryovers (7.685) (7,300)
Atlowance for doubtful accounts \ (74,040) | (78,287)
Accrued expenses I (34,588) | (29,633)
Employee and retiree benefits ] (20,181} | {17,546)
QOther | (58,84 (64,638)
Gross deferred tax assets \ (238,218) (283,470)
Valuation allowance for [ ‘
deferred tax assets | 317 | 31,614
Gross deferred tax assets, ‘ "
after allowance J (205,082) | (251,856)
P

Net deferred tax liability $ 139,989

In fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, tax benefits of $43.5 million,
$14.4 million and $4.9 million, respectively, related to the exercise
of employee stock options were recorded as additional paid-in capital.

As of September 30, 2002, the Company had $19.2 mitlion of
potential tax benefits from federal net operating loss carryforwards
expiring in 7 to 19 years, and $14.4 million of potential tax benefits
from state operating loss carryforwards expiring in 1 to 20 years, As
of September 30, 2002, the Company had $9.2 million of federal and
state alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards, and $7.7 million
of capital loss carryforwards expiring in 1 to 3 years.

In fiscal 2001, the Company increased the valuation allowance
on deferred tax assets by $31.5 million due to the uncertainty of
realizing several deferred tax assets acquired in connection with the
Merger. The increase was accounted for as a component of the initial
purchase price allocation for the Merger. Under current accounting
rules, any future reduction of the valuation altowance, due to the
realization of the related deferred tax assets, will reduce goodwill.

Income tax payments, net of refunds, were $111.9 million, $14.2
million and $26.5 million in the fiscal years ended September 30,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

o
o
o
o
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Note 4. Coodwill and Other Intangible Assels

Following is a summary of the changes in the carrying value of goodwill, by reportable segment, for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2002 (in thousands):

Pharmaceutical
Distribution PharMerica Total
Goodwill at September 30, 2001 $1,854,158 $271,100 $2,125,258
Adjustments to the fair value of net assets
acquired in connection with the Merger (14,350) (2,144) (16,494)
Goodwill recognized in connection with the
acquisition of AutoMed Technologies, Inc. 88,719 — 88,719
Goodwill recognized in connection with the
acquisition of other businesses 7,676 — 7,676
Goodwill at September 30, 2002 $1,936,203 $268,956 $2,205,159

As shown in the above table, adjustments to the fair value of net assets acquired in connection with the Merger resulted in a corresponding
reduction in goodwill. Such adjustments consisted of the favorable resolution of legal matters and other contingencies, partially offset by the
cost of facility consolidation and employee severance related to former Bergen facilities and employees as described in Note 11.

Following is a summary of other intangible assets (in thousands):

f Seplember 30, 2002 ) September 30, 2001
| Breoss pled Gross Net
Carmying INcctitilatec] Comying | Carrying Accumulated Carrying
‘ Armeumt Amerszatien Arneunt J‘ Amount Amortization Amount
Unamortized intangibles:
Tradenames $226,7%1 $ = $226,781 } $219,000 $ - $219,000
Amortized intangibles:
Customer lists and other 32,838 (6,298) 25,842 ‘ 17,375 (4,203) 13,172
Total other intangible assets { $250,619 $(6,998) $8252,623 { $236,375 $(4,203) $232,172

Amortization expense for other intangible assets was $2.9 million, $1.5 million and $0.6 million in the fiscal years ended September 30,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Amortization expense for other intangible assets is estimated to be $4.5 million in fiscal 2003, $3.7 million
in each of fiscal 2004, fisca. 2005, and fiscal 2006 and $3.1 million in fiscal 2007.

Note 5. Debt
Debt consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

September 30, ; 2002 2001

Term loan facility at 3.41% and 5.01%, respectively, due 2003 to 2006 | $ 300,000 \ $ 300,000
Blanco revolving credit facility at 3.71% and 5.14%, respectively, due 2003 { 53,000 i 55,000
AmeriSource receivables securitization financing due 2004, at 3.89% ! = | 22,000
Bergen receivables securitization financing due 2005, at 3.69% ‘ = J 15,000
Bergen 7%4% senior notes due 2003 | 280,419 151,832
Bergen 7% senior notes due 2005 98,758 | 99,668
8%% senior notes due 2008 J 500,000 500,000
PharMerica 8%% senior subordinated notes due 2008 124,532 124,719
Bergen 7% convertible subordinated debentures due 2006 ' = 20,609
AmeriSource 5% convertible subordinated notes due 2007 300,000 , 300,000
Bergen 6'4% exchangeable subordinated debentures due 2011 8,425 f 8,425
Bergen 7.80% trust preferred securities due 2039 275,298 274,616
Other 3,801 L 2,510

Total debt W 1,817,313 | 1,874,379
Less current portion 60,819 2,468

Total, net of current portion 1,756,494, L $1,871,911

L

Long-Term Debt

In connection with the Merger (see Note 2), the Company issued $500 million of 8%% senior notes due September 1, 2008 (the “8%%
Notes”). The 8%% Notes are redeemable at the Company’s option at any time before maturity at a redemption price equal to 101% of the
principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the date of redemption and, under some
circumstances, a redemption premium. Interest on the 8%% Notes is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year.




In connection with the Merger, the Company entered into a
senior secured credit agreement (the “Senior Credit Agreement”)
with a syndicate of lenders. The Senior Credit Agreement refinanced
the senior secured credit agreements of AmeriSource and Bergen
existing at the Merger date. The Senior Credit Agreement consists of
a $1.0 billion revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”) and
a $300 million term loan facility {the “Term Facility”), both maturing
in August 2006. The Term Facility has scheduled quarterly maturities
beginning in December 2002, totaling $60 million in each of fiscal
2003 and 2004, $80 million in fiscal 2005 and $100 million in fiscal
2006. There were no borrowings outstanding under the Revolving
Facility at September 30, 2002 and 2001. Interest on borrowings
under the Senior Credit Agreement accrues at specified rates based
on the Company’s debt ratings; such rates range from 1.0% to 2.5%
over LIBOR or 0% to 1.5% over prime (1.5% over LIBOR and 0.5%
over prime at September 30, 2002). Availability under the Revolving
Facility is reduced by the amount of cutstanding letters of credit
($62.4 miltion at September 30, 2002). The Company pays quarterly
commitment fees to maintain the availability under the Revolving
Facility at rates based on the Company's debt ratings: such rates
range from .25% to 0.50% of the unused availability (0.375% at
September 30, 2002). The Company may choose to repay or reduce
its commitments under the Senior Credit Agreement at any time.
Substantially all of the Company's assets, except for trade
receivables sold into the ARFC Securitization Facility or the Blue
Hill Securitization Program (as described below), collateralize the
Senior Credit Agreement.

The Blanco revotving credit facility {(“Blanco Facility”), held
by the Company’s Puerto Rican subsidiary, is a $55 million bank
revolving credit facility that expires in May 2003. Borrowings under
the facility, which were $55 million at September 30, 2002 and 2001,
bear interest at 0.35% above LIBOR and are secured by a standby
letter of credit under the Senior Credit Agreement for which the
Company incurs a fee of 1.625%.

Aggregate net proceeds from the issuance of the 8%% Notes and
the Senior Credit Agreement were used: to repay $436.5 million
outstanding under Bergen’s $1.5 billion senior secured credit facility
on the Merger date, including a prepayment penalty of $1.9 million;
to refinance AmeriSource’s $500 million senior secured five-year
revolving credit agreement, in effect since January 1997, which had
no outstanding balance at the Merger date; to repurchase $187.4
miltion of PharMerica’s 8%% senior subordinated notes (the “8%%
Notes”), including payment of a $2.8 million premium on the Merger
date; to repurchase $20.6 million of Bergen’s 7% convertible subor-
dinated debentures (the “7% Debentures”) in November 2001; and
to pay fees and expenses associated with the Merger, the issuance of
the 8'%% Notes, the Senior Credit Agreement, the repurchase of the
8%% Notes and 7% Debentures, and for general corporate purposes.

In connection with the issuance of the 8%% Notes and the
Senior Credit Agreement, the Company incurred approximately $24.0
million of costs, which were deferred and are being amortized over
the applicable term of each instrument.

In December 2000, AmeriSource issued $300 million of 5%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due December 1, 2007 (the “5%
Notes”). The 5% Notes were originally convertible into Class A
Common Stock of AmeriSource at $52.97 per share. Upon
consummation of the Merger, the Company entered into a
supplemental indenture providing that each of the 5% Notes would
thereafter be convertible into the number of shares of the common
stock of the Company which the note holder would have received in
the Merger if the note holder had converted the 5% Notes immedi-
ately prior to the Merger. The 5% Notes are convertible at any time

before their maturity or their prior redemption or repurchase by
the Company. On or after December 3, 2004, the Company has the
option to redeem all or a portion of the 5% Notes that have not
been previously converted. Interest on the 5% Notes is payable on
June 1 and December 1 of each year. Net proceeds from the 5%
Notes of approximately $290.6 million were used to repay existing
borrowings and for working capital and other general corporate
purposes. In connection with the issuance of the 5% Notes, the
Company incurred approximately $9.4 million of costs, which were
deferred and are being amortized over the term of the issue.
The indentures governing the 8%% Notes, the Senior Credit
Agreement and the 5% Notes contain restrictions and covenants
which include limitations on additional indebtedness; distributions
and dividends to stockholders; the repurchase of stock and the
making of other restricted payments; issuance of preferred stock;
creation of certain liens; capital expenditures; transactions with
subsidiaries and other affiliates; and certain corporate acts such
as mergers, consolidations, and the sale of substantially all assets.
Additional covenants require compliance with financial tests,
inctuding leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios, and
maintenance of minimum tangible net worth.
In connection with the Merger, the Company also assumed the
following Bergen long-term debt:
© 7%% senior notes due January 15, 2003 (the “Bergen 7%%
Notes”);

© 7'% senior notes due June 1, 2005 (the “Bergen 7%% Notes”);

o 8%% Notes;

© 7% Debentures;

© 64% exchangeable subordinated debentures due July 15, 2011
(the “Bergen 6%% Debentures”);

o Blanco Facility; and

o Bergen receivables securitization financing due 2005 {described
under “Receivables Securitization Financing” below)

The Bergen 7%% Notes and the Bergen 7%% Notes are unsecured
and carry aggregate principal amounts of $150 million and $100
miltion, respectively, and are not redeemable prior to maturity, and
are not entitled to any sinking fund. Interest is payable on January
15 and July 15 of each year for the Bergen 7%% Notes and on June
1 and December 1 of each year for the Bergen 7%% Notes.

On October 29, 2001, PharMerica, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, completed a tender offer to purchase the remaining
$123.5 million of its 8%% Notes which were not repurchased on the
Merger date. No notes were tendered in response to the offer, which
was required as a result of the Merger according to the terms of the
indenture under which the 8%% Notes were issued. Interest on the
outstanding notes is paid on April 1 and October 1 of each year.

In connection with the purchase price allocation, the carrying
values of the Bergen 7%% Notes, Bergen 7%% Notes and 8%% Notes
were adjusted to fair values based on quoted market prices on the
date of the Merger. The difference between the fair values and the
face amounts of these Notes is being amortized as a net reduction
of interest expense over the remaining terms of the borrowings.

During November 2001, the Company redeemed substantially all
of its $20.6 million outstanding 7% Debentures. The redemption
offer was required as a result of the Merger.

Interest on the unsecured $8.4 million outstanding Bergen 6%%
Debentures is paid on January 15 and July 15 of each year.

The Bergen 7%% Notes, which are due in January 2003, and the
Blanco Facility, which expires in May 2003, are not classified in the
current portion of long-term debt on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet at September 30, 2002 because the Company has the
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ability and intent to refinance them on a long-term basis (see Note
16). Additionally, since borrowings under the Blanco Facility are
secured by a standby letter of credit under the Senior Credit
Agreement, the Company is effectively financing this debt on

a long-term basis through that arrangement.

Preferred Securities of Trust

In connection with the Merger, the Company assumed Bergen’s
Capital I Trust (the “Trust”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bergen.
In May 1999, the Trust issued 12,000,000 shares of 7.80% Trust
Originated Preferred Securities (SM) (TOPrS(SM)) (the “Trust
Preferred Securities”) at $25 per security. The proceeds of such
issuances were invested by the Trust in $300 million aggregate
principal amount of Bergen’s 7.80% Subordinated Deferrable
Interest Notes due June 30, 2039 (the “Subordinated Notes”). The
Subordinated Notes represent the sole assets of the Trust and bear
interest at the annual rate of 7.80%, payable quarterly, and are
redeemable by the Company beginning in May 2004 at 100% of the
principal amount thereof. The Trust Preferred Securities will be
redeemable upon any repayment of the Subordinated Notes at 100%
of the liguidation amount beginning in May 2004. The obligations
of the Trust related to the Preferred Securities are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by the Company.

Holders of the Trust Preferred Securities are entitled to cumulative
cash distributions at an annual rate of 7.80% of the liquidation
amount of $25 per security. The Trust paid cash distributions of
$23.4 miltion during fiscal 2002, which are classified as interest
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
The Company, under certain conditions, may cause the Trust to defer
the payment of distributions for successive periods of up to 20
consecutive quarters. During such periods, accrued distributions on
the Trust Preferred Securities will compound quarterly at an annual
rate of 7.80%. Also during such periods, the Company may not
dectare or pay distributions on its capital stock; may not redeem,
purchase or make a liquidation payment on any of its capital stock;
and may not make interest, principal or premium payments on, or
repurchase or redeem, any of its debt securities that rank equal with
or junior to the Subordinated Notes.

In connection with the purchase price allocation, the carrying
value of the Trust Preferred Securities was adjusted to fair value
based on quoted market prices on the date of the Merger. The
difference between the fair value and the face amount of the
Trust Preferred Securities is accreted to redemption value over the
remaining term of the Trust Preferred Securities and is recorded as
an increase in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

The Subordinated Notes and the related Trust investment in the
Subordinated Notes have been eliminated in consolidation and the
Trust Preferred Securities are reflected as outstanding debt in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. In the prior year, the
Trust Preferred Securities were classified as a separate line between
liabilities and stockholders’ equity on the balance sheets. The prior
year amount has been reclassified to conform with the current year
classification.

Receivables Securitization Financing

The Company utilizes the receivables securitization facilities
initiated by AmeriSource (the “ARFC Securitization Facility”) and
Bergen (the “Blue Hill Securitization Program”). In connection
with an internal reorganization on October 1, 2002 (see Note 1},
both of these securitization facilities were amended to permit such
reorganization and to provide for the designation of the trade
receivables of the merged AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation
which would be sold into the ARFC Securitization Facility and the
Blue Hill Securitization Program.

The ARFC Securitization Facility provides a total borrowing capacity
of $400 million. In connection with the ARFC Securitization Facility,
AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation sells on a revolving basis
certain accounts receivable to a 100%-owned special purpose entity
(“ARFC"), which in turn sells a percentage ownership interest in the
receivables to a commercial paper conduit sponsored by a financial
institution. AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation is the servicer of
the accounts receivable under the ARFC Securitization Facility. After
the maximum limit of receivables sold has been reached and as sold
receivables are collected, additional receivables may be sold up to
the maximum amount receivable under the facility. The ARFC
Securitization Facility has an expiration date of May 2004, although
in certain circumstances it may be terminated prior to such date.
Interest is at a rate at which funds are obtained by the financial
institution to fund the receivables (short-term commercial paper
rates) plus a program fee of 38.5 basis points (2.12% at September
30, 2002). In order to borrow availabie amounts under this securiti-
zation facility, a back-up 364-day liquidity facility is required to be
in place. The current liquidity facility expires in May 2003, but the
Company expects that it will be renewed through May 2004.
AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation is required to pay a commitment
fee of 25 basis points on any unused credit in excess of $25 mitlion.
At September 30, 2002, there were no borrowings outstanding under
the ARFC Securitization Facility.

The Blue Hill Securitization Program provides a total borrowing
capacity of $450 million. In connection with the Blue Hill
Securitization Program, AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation sells
on a revolving basis certain accounts receivable to a 100%-owned
special purpose entity (“Blue Hill”), which in turn sells a percentage
ownership interest in the receivables to a commercial paper conduit
sponsored by a financial institution. AmerisourceBergen Drug
Corporation is the servicer of the accounts receivable under the Blue
Hill Securitization Program. After the maximum limit of receivables
sold has been reached and as sold receivables are collected,
additional receivables may be sold up to the maximum amount
receivable under the program. The Blue Hill Securitization Program
has an expiration date of December 2005. Interest is at short-term
commercial paper rates plus a program fee of 75 basis points (2.49%
at September 30, 2002). AmerisourceBergen Drug Corporation is
required to pay a commitment fee of 25 basis points on any unused
credit. At September 30, 2002, there were no borrowings oufstanding
under the Blue Hill Securitization Program.

The agreements governing the above securitization facilities
contain restrictions and covenants which include limitations on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness, making of certain restricted
payments, issuance of preferred stock, creation of certain liens, and
certain corporate acts such as mergers, consolidations and sale of
substantially all assets.

Transactions under the ARFC Securitization Facility and the
Blue Hill Securitization Program are accounted for as borrowings
in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”




Other Information

Scheduled future principal payments of long-term debt are
$266.2 million in fiscal 2003, $60.6 million in fiscal 2004, $180.4
million in fiscal 2005, $100.6 million in fiscal 2006, $0.6 million in
fiscal 2007 and $1,208.9 million thereafter.

Interest paid on the above indebtedness, including distributions
made on the Trust Preferred Securities, during the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $137.9 million,
$50.9 million and $40.5 million, respectively.

Total amortization of financing fees and expenses, as well as the
premiums and discounts related to the adjustment of the carrying
values of certain Bergen debt to fair value in connection with the
Merger, for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and
2000 was $5.4 million, $3.1 million, and $1.3 million, respectively.
These amounts are included in interest expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

Note 6. Stockholders’ Equity and Earnings per Share

The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of
300,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share
(the “Common Stock™), and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock,
par value $0.01 per share (the “Preferred Stock”).

The board of directors is authorized to provide for the issuance
of shares of Preferred Stock in one or more series with various
designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or
other special rights and qualifications, limitations or restrictions.
Except as required by law, or as otherwise provided by the board of
directors of the Company, the holders of Preferred Stock will have
no voting rights and will not be entitled to notice of meetings of
stockholders. Holders of Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive,
when declared by the board of directors, out of legally available
funds, dividends at the rates fixed by the board of directors for
the respective series of Preferred Stock, and no more, before any
dividends will be declared and paid, or set apart for payment, on
Common Stock with respect to the same dividend period. No shares
of Preferred Stock have been issued as of September 30, 2002.

Upon the merger of AmeriSource and Bergen in August 2001,
all outstanding shares of AmeriSource Class A, Class B and Class C
common stock were exchanged for shares of the Company’s Commeon
Stock on a one-for-one basis.

The holders of the Company's Common Stock are entitled to one
vote per share and have the exclusive right to vote for the board of
directors and for all other purposes as provided by law. Subject to
the rights of holders of the Company’s Preferred Stock, holders of
Common Stock are entitled to receive ratabty on a per share basis
such dividends and other distributions in cash, stock or property of
the Company as may be declared by the board of directors from time
to time out of the legally available assets or funds of the Company.
The Company paid its first quarterly dividend, a cash dividend of
$0.025 per share on Common Stock, on December 3, 2001. Dividends
of $0.025 per share were paid on March 1, 2002, June 3, 2002 and
September 3, 2002. The Company anticipates that it will continue
to pay quarterly cash dividends in the future. However, the payment
and amount of future dividends remain within the discretion of the
Company’s board of directors and will depend upon the Company’s
future earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and
other factors.

Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
periods presented. Diluted earnings per share is computed on the
basis of the weighted average number of shares of common stock

outstanding during the period plus the dilutive effect of stock
options. Additionally, the fiscal 2002 and 2001 diluted calculations
consider the 5% convertible subordinated notes (see Note 5) as if
converted and, therefore, the effect of interest expense related to
these notes is added back to net income in determining income
available to common stockholders. The following table (in thousands)
is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the
computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

Fiscal year ended

September 30, g 2002 2001 2000
Net income ‘ $344,947 | $123,796  $99,014
Interest expense — convertible
subordinated notes,
net of income taxes §,022 8,112 —
Income available to
common stockholders $354,863 | $131,908 $99,014
Weighted average common : ‘
shares outstanding — basic 104,835 57,185 51,552
Effect of dilutive securities:
Options to purchase i
common stock 5,820 1 1,076 468
Convertible subordinated notes | 5,564 \ 4,546 —
Weighted average common o ‘,
shares outstanding — i
diluted 12,228 | 62,807 52,020
|

Note 7. Pension and Other Benefit Plans

The Company continues to maintain certain defined benefit,
defined contribution, and postretirement health plans initiated by
AmeriSource and Bergen prior to the Merger. In connection with the
Merger integration, the Company evaluated these benefit plans and
developed company-wide plans, which involved modification,
replacement or merger of certain predecessor plans.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides a benefit for the majority of its former
AmeriSource employees under three different noncontributory
defined benefit pension plans consisting of a salaried plan, a
union plan and a supplemental executive retirement plan. For each
employee, the benefits are based on years of service and average
compensation. Pension costs, which are computed using the projected
unit credit cost method, are funded to at least the minimum level
required by government regulations. During fiscal 2002, the salaried
and the supplemental executive retirement plans were closed to new
participants and benefits that can be earned by active participants
in the plan were limited. The above changes in the salaried plan
and the supplemental executive retirement plan had the effect of
reducing the projected benefit obligation as of September 30, 2002
by $12.7 million and increasing pension expense by $0.9 million in
fiscal 2002.

The Company has a supplemental executive retirement plan, an
unfunded plan, for its former Bergen officers and key employees.
This plan is a “target” benefit plan, with the annual lifetime benefit
based upon a percentage of salary during the five final years of
pay at age 62, offset by several other sources of income including
benefits payable under a prior supplemental retirement plan. During
fiscal 2002, the plan was closed to new participants and benefits
that can be earned by active participants were limited.

2002

=
o
pe]
o
-
°
a
=
o
o
=
@
o
4
o
@
[
o]
ha
3
°
bl
o
@
£
<




AmerisourceBergen Corporation

The following table sets forth (in thousands) a reconciliation of the changes in the Company-sponsored defined benefit pension plans:

S

Fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 2001
Change in Projected Benefit Obligations:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year § 85,026 $ 62,267
Benefit obligation assumed in Merger 286 15,714
Service cost B,044 4,408
Interest cost 6,038 4,746
Actuarial losses %,555 1,396
Benefit payments (9.882) (3,505)
Change due to amendments of plans (12,839) —
Benefit obligation at end of year 8 78,078 $ 85,026
i
Change in Plan Assets: !
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year I8 51,389 $ 51,549
Actual return on plan assets o (1,386) 904
Employer contributions i ®,652 3,107
Expenses (1,27) (666)
Benefit payments (8,984) (3.505)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year § 51,584 $ 51,389
Funded Status and Amounts Recognized: 1
Funded status ! §(27,494) $(33,637)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss “ 14,382 15,932
Unrecognized prior service cost 692 1,917
Net amount recognized $(12,220) $(15,788)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of:
Prepaid benefit cost $ = $ 1,393
Accrued benefit liability (28,7683) (17,456)
Intangible asset 692 275
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 9,851 —
Net amount recognized $(12,220) $(15,788)
Weighted average assumptions used in computing the funded status of the plans were as follows:
2002 2001 2000
Discount rate 7.00% 7.50% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels B.50% 5.75% 6.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.75% 10.00% 10.00%

The following table provides components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company-sponsored defined benefit pension plans together
with contributions charged to expense for multi-employer union-administered defined benefit pension plans that the Company participates in

(in thousands):

2002

Fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 2000
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
Service cost $6,731 $4,571 $3,948
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 6,088 4,746 4,584
Expected return on plan assets (3,390) (5,486) (5.130)
Amortization of net transition asset = — (144)
Amortization of prior service cost 361 377 377
Recognized net actuarial loss 755 - 298 499
Loss due to amendments of plans 867 — —
Net periodic pension cost of defined benefit
pension plans &,359 4,506 4,134
Net pension cost of multi-employer plans 1,141 520 435
Total pension expense $9,500 $5,026 $4,569




Plan assets at September 30, 2002 are invested principally in
listed stocks, corporate and government bonds, and cash equiva-
lents. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, all of the
Company-sponsored defined benefit pension plans had projected
and accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets. The
projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and
fair value of plan assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets were $20.9 million, $15.4
million, and $1.7 million, respectively, as of September 30, 2001.

The Company owns life insurance covering substantially all of
the participants in the Bergen supplemental retirement plans. At
September 30, 2002, the policies have an aggregate cash surrender
value of approximately $31.0 million (which is included in other
assets in the accompanying consolidated batance sheet) and an
aggregate death benefit of approximately $53.1 million.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company sponsors an Employee Investment Plan, as amended
July 1, 2002, which is a defined contribution 401(k) plan covering
salaried and certain hourly employees. Eligible participants may
contribute to the plan from 2% to 18% of their regular compensation
before taxes. The Company contributes $1.00 for each $1.00 invested
by the participant up to the participant’s investment of 3% of salary,
and $0.50 for each additional $1.00 invested by the participant up
to the participant’s investment of an additional 2% of salary. An
additional discretionary contribution, in an amount not to exceed
the limits established by the Internal Revenue Code, may also be
made depending upon the Company’s performance. All contributions
are invested at the direction of the employee in one or more funds.
All contributions vest immediately except for the discretionary
contributions made by the Company that vest over a four-year period.

Bergen had sponsored the Pre-tax Investment Retirement
Account Plan, a defined contribution 401(k) plan, which was
generally available to its employees with 30 days of service.
Under the terms of the plan, Bergen had guaranteed a contribution
of $1.00 for each $1.00 invested by the participant up to the
participant’s investment of 3% of salary, and $0.50 for each
additional $1.00 invested by the participant up to the participant’s
investment of an additional 2% of salary, subject to plan and
regulatory limitations. Bergen also had the option to make
additional cash or stock contributions o the plan at its discretion.
All participants vested immediately in Bergen's contributions from
the first day of participation in the plan. Effective July 1, 2002,
the Bergen plan was merged into the Employee Investment Plan.

Costs of the defined contribution plans charged to expense for
the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 amounted
to $10.1 million, $2.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively.

Postretirement Benefit Obligations

The Company provides medical benefits to certain retirees,
principally former employees of Bergen. Employees became eligible
for such postretirement benefits after meeting certain age and years
of service criteria. During fiscal 2002, the plan was closed to new
participants and benefits that can be earned by active participants
were limited. As a result of special termination benefit packages
previously offered, the Company also provides dental and life
insurance benefits to a limited number of retirees and their
dependents. These benefit plans are unfunded. The aggregate
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was $16.9 million as
of September 30, 2002, of which $1.9 million is included in accrued
expenses and $15.0 miltion is included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The assumptions used

in determining the obligation at September 30, 2002 included a
weighted average discount rate of 7.0% and medical inflation rates
ranging from 5.0% to 11.0%. The expense for such benefits was $1.3
million in fiscal 2002.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company also adopted Bergen's deferred compensation plan.
This unfunded plan, under which 740,000 shares of common stock are
authorized for issuance, allows eligible officers, directors and key
management employees to defer a portion of their annual compensa-
tion. The amount deferred may be allocated by the employee to cash,
mutual funds or stock credits. Stack credits, including dividend
equivalents, are equal to the full and fractional number of shares of
common stock that could be purchased with the participant's compen-
sation allocated to stock credits based on the average of closing
prices of common stock during each month, plus, at the discretion of
the board of directors, up to one-half of a share of common stock for
each full share credited. Stock credit distributions are made in shares
of common stock. No shares of common stock have been issued under
the deferred compensation plan at September 30, 2002.

MNote 8. Stock Compensation Plans

Stock Option Plans

Effective October 1, 1996, the Company adopted the disclosure-
only option under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” The Company continues to use the accounting
method under APB Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”) and related
interpretations for its employee stock options. Under APB 25,
generally, when the exercise price of the Company’s employee
stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on
the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized.

The Company has several stock-related compensation plans that
were initiated by AmeriSource and Bergen prior to the Merger. In
connection with the Merger integration, the Company has merged
certain of the predecessor plans. The Company currently has five
employee stock option plans that provide for the granting of
incentive and nonqualified stock options to acquire shares of
common stock to employees at a price not less than the fair market
value of the common stock on the date the option is granted.
Option terms and vesting periods are determined at the date of
grant by a committee of the board of directors. Options generally
vest over four years and expire in six or ten years. The Company also
has four non-employee director stock option plans that provide for
the granting of nonqualified stock options to acquire shares of
common stock to non-employee directors at the fair market value
of the common stock on the date of the grant. Vesting periods for
the non-employee director plans range from immediate vesting to
three years and options expire in six or ten years.

At September 30, 2002, there were outstanding options to
purchase 7.8 million shares of common stock under the
aforementioned plans. Options for an additional 1.4 million
shares may be granted under these plans.

All outstanding stock options granted prior to February 15, 2001
under the above plans became fully vested on the day before the
Merger, and generally became exercisable on August 28, 2002. As a
result of the accelerated vesting of AmeriSource stock options, the
Company recorded a charge of $2.1 million in fiscal 2002 and $6.5
miltion in fiscal 2001. These charges have been classified as merger
costs in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
(see Note 10).
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A summary of the Company's stock option activity and related information for its option plans for the fiscal years ended

September 30 follows:

| 2002 f 2001 2000
‘ Welghted | Weighted Weighted
Average } Average Average
Optiens Ewrdise | Options Exercise Options Exercise
| (@09E) Prlce / {000's) Price (000's) Price
Qutstanding at beginning of year 8,756 $42 l 3,634 $24 3,578 $25
Acquired in Merger 240 &7 3,465 37 — —
Granted 2,173 70 l 3,220 56 1,128 13
Exercised (3,048) 33 (1,326) 23 (919) 13
Forfeited | (323) 63 (237) 27 (153) 28
Outstanding at end of year / 7,803 $53 8,756 $42 3,634 $24
Exercisable at end of year JL 4,002 $40 J 2,921 $39 1,369 $24

]

A summary of the status of options outstanding at September 30, 2002 follows:

Outstanding Options

Weighted
Average  Weighted
Remaining Average
Number Contractual Exercise
Exercise Price Range (000's) Life Price
$12~% 20 763 7 years $14
$21 -~ $ 40 1,406 6 years 31
$42 - $ 60 1,504 8 years 49
$63 - 377 4,063 9 years 68
$84 - $115 65 5 years 94
Total 7,801 8 years $53

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Exercisable Options

Weighted

Average

Number Exercise
{000's) Price
688 $13
1,379 31
1,163 48
707 66

65 94
4,002 $40

In February 2002, the stockholders approved the adoption of the AmerisourceBergen 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Plan”
or “ESPP™), under which up to an aggregate of 4,000,000 shares of Common Stock may be sold to eligible employees (generally defined as
employees with at least 30 days of service with the Company). Under the Plan, the participants may elect to have the Company withhold up
to 25% of base salary to purchase shares of the Company’s Comman Stock at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value of the stock on
the first or last business day of each six-month purchase period, whichever is lower. Each participant is limited to $25,000 of purchases
during each calendar year. The initial purchase period began on July 1, 2002 and, accordingly, no shares have been issued under the ESPP
as of September 30, 2002. As of September 30, 2002, the Company has withheld $1.4 million from eligible employees for the purchase of

Common Stock.

Pro Forma Disclosures

Pro forma disclosures, as required by SFAS No. 123, regarding net income and earnings per share have been determined as if the Company

had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method.

The fair values for the Company’s options were estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions for the years ending September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000: a risk-free interest rate ranging from 3.69% to 4.61%; expected dividend
yield ranging from 0.0% to 0.2%; a volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’s common stock ranging from .335 to .509
and a weighted average expected life of the options of 5 years. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended
September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $25.96, $27.00 and $6.67, respectively.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options and shares under the ESPP are amortized to expense over
their assumed vesting perieds. The Company’s pro forma information follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal year ended September 30, 2002 2001 2000
Pro forma net income $354,126 $101,967 $93,097
Pro forma earnings per shave:
Basic ‘ 3.48 | 1.78 1.81
Diluted ! 3,06 1.72 1.79




Note 9. Leases

At September 30, 2002, future minimum payments totaling
$155.4 million under noncancelable operating leases with remaining
terms of more than one fiscal year were due as follows: 2003 —
$51.6 mitlion; 2004 — $35.6 million; 2005 — $26.9 million; 2006
— $18.1 million; 2007 — $10.7 million; and thereafter — $12.5
miltion. In the normal course of business, operating leases are
generally renewed or replaced by other leases. Certain operating
leases include escalation clauses.

Total rental expense was $59.7 miltion in fiscal 2002, $22.4
million in fiscal 2001 and $17.7 million in fiscal 2000.

Note 10. Merger Costs

In connection with its acquisition of Bergen, the Company
expensed merger-related costs of $24.2 million in 2002 and $13.1
million in fiscal 2001, respectively.

The following table summarizes the major components of the
merger-related costs included in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations in the fiscal years ended September 30

(in thousands):
| 2062 2001

Consulting fees £16,351 $ 5,574
Accelerated stock option vesting 2,348 6,472
Employee compensation and travel ; 3,875 242
Other C 91,869 821

| §26,244 $13,109

Additional merger costs related to the Bergen acquisition,
including merger integration and employee retention costs, will
be charged to expense in subsequent periods when incurred.

Note 11, Facility Consolidations and Employee Severance

In connection with the Merger, the Company has developed
integration plans to consolidate its distribution network and
eliminate duplicate administrative functions, which are expected to
vesult in synergies of approximately $150 million annually by the
end of the third year following the Merger. The Company’s plan is to
have a distribution facility network consisting of 30 facilities in the
next four to five years. This will be accomplished by building six new
facilities, expanding seven facilities, and closing 27 facilities. During
fiscal 2002, the Company closed seven distribution facilities and is
planning to close an additional six facilities in fiscal 2003.

In September 2001, the Company announced plans to close
seven distribution facilities in fiscat 2002, consisting of six former
AmeriSource facilities and one former Bergen facility. A charge of
$10.9 million was recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001
related to the AmeriSource facilities, and included $6.2 million of
severance for approximately 260 warehouse and administrative
personnel to be terminated, $2.3 million in lease and contract
cancellations, and $2.4 million for the write-down of assets related
to the facilities to be closed. Approximately $0.2 million of
costs related to the Bergen facility were included in the purchase
price allocation. The severance expense in fiscal 2001 included
$1.1 million associated with the acceleration of stock option vesting.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, the Company
announced further integration initiatives relating to the closure of
Bergen'’s repackaging facility and the elimination of certain Bergen
administrative functions, including the closure of a related office

facility. The cost of these initiatives of approximately $19.2 million,
which included $15.8 million of severance for approximately 310
employees to be terminated, $1.6 million for lease cancellation
costs, and $1.8 million for the write-down of assets related to the
facilities to be closed, resulted in additional goodwill being recorded
during fiscal 2002.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, seven
distribution facilities and the repackaging facility were closed and
approximately 355 employees were terminated. The Company paid a
total of $15.6 million for employee severance and lease ard contract
cancellation costs with respect to its integration initiatives during
fiscal 2002. Remaining unpaid amounts of $9.1 million for employee
severance and lease obligations are included in accrued expenses
and other in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2002. Severance for some employees will be paid
over periods of up to eighteen months after their respective
termination dates.

In September 2002, the Company announced the first of its six
facility closures planned for fiscal 2003. Employee severance and
lease cancellation costs related to the fiscal 2003 facility closures
will be recognized in accordance with the new provisions of SFAS
No. 146. Employee severance costs will generally be expensed
during the employee service period and lease cancellation and other
costs will generally be expensed when the Company enters into a
contractual obligation. Additional amounts for integration initiatives
will be recognized in subsequent periods as facilities to be consoli-
dated are identified and specific plans are approved and announced.

The following table displays the activity in accrued expenses and
other from September 30, 2000 to September 30, 2002 related to the
integration plans discussed above (in thousands):

Lease
Cancellation
Employee Costs and
Severance Other Total
Balance as of
September 30, 2000 $ — § — 3 —
Facility consolidation and
employee severance expensed 5,141 2,342 7,483
Facility consolidation and
employee severance charged
to goodwill 150 — 150
Payments made during S
fiscal 2001 (32) (345) (377) >
Balance as of
September 30, 2001 5,259 1,997 7,256 ?_
Facility consolidation and g
employee severance s
charged to goodwill 15,795 1,616 17,411 <
Payments made during ;"’
fiscal 2002 (12,898)  (2,658) (15,556) 3
Balance as of ]
September 30, 2002 $ 815 § 955 § 9,111 §
E
<

In the third quarter of fiscal 2000, severance accruals of $1.1
million related to the Company's fiscal 1999 facility consolidation
and 1998 restructuring efforts were reversed into income after
employees expected to be severed either left the Company before
receiving their benefits or were retained in other positions within
the Company.
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Note 12. lLegal Matters and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company becomes
involved in lawsuits, administrative proceedings and governmental
investigations, including antitrust, environmental, product liability,
regulatory and other matters. Large and sometimes unspecified
damages or penalties may be sought from the Company in some
matters, and some matters may require years for the Company to
resolve. The Company establishes reserves from time to time based
on its periodic assessment of the potential outcomes of pending
matters. There can be no assurance that an adverse resolution of
one or more matters durirg any subsequent reporting period will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations for that period. However, on the basis of information
furnished by counsel and others, the Company does not believe that
the resolution of currently pending matters, (including those matters
specifically described below), individually or in the aggregate, will
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition.

Environmental Remediation

The Company is subject to contingencies pursuant to environ-
mental laws and requlations at ane of its former distribution centers
that may require the Company to make remediation efforts. In fiscal
1994, the Company accrued $4.1 million to cover future consulting,
tegal, remediation and ongoing monitoring costs. Approximately
$0.5 million of such costs have been paid through September 30,
2002. Based on a new engineering analysis prepared by outside
consuttants that was completed in September 2001, environmental
reserves of $2.7 million were reversed into income during fiscal
2001. The remaining accrued liability of $0.9 million is reflected
in other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
at September 30, 2002. The accrued liability represents the current
estimate of costs to remediate the site considering the extent of
contamination and choice of remedy based on existing technology
and presently enacted laws and regulations. However, changes in
remediation standards, improvements in cleanup technology and
discovery of additional information concerning the site could affect
the actual liability in the future.

Proposition 65

In October 2001, the Center for Environmental Health filed
a lawsuit against the Company's Bergen Brunswig Drug Company
subsidiary (“BBDC”), now known as AmerisourceBergen Drug
Corporation, and several other defendants. The complaint alleged
violations of California’s Proposition 65 and Unfair Trade Practices
Act for failure to provide clear and reasonable warnings regarding
the carcinogenicity and reproductive toxicity of lead and the
reproductive toxicity of cadmium to the users of FDA-approved
anti-diarrheal medicines. The Company tendered its defense to the
manufacturer of its private label medicines. In January 2002, the
California Attorney General served an amended complaint against
BBDC and several of the defendants covering the same products and
asserting similar allegations and damages. On January 29, 2002, the
State filed a motion to consolidate the two actions in San Francisco
County Superior Court. The Company has answered the amended
complaints. Settlement discussions are ongoing.

Contract Dispute

In January 2002, BBDC was served with a complaint filed in the
United States District Court for the District of New Jersey by one of
its manufacturer vendors, Bracco Diagnostics Inc. The complaint,
which includes claims for fraud, breach of New Jersey’s Consumer
Fraud Act, breach of contract and unjust enrichment, involves

disputes relating to chargebacks and credits. The Court granted the
Company’s motion to dismiss the fraud and New Jersey Consumer
Fraud Act counts. The Company has answered the remaining counts
of the complaint and the parties have served each other with
discovery requests and discovery is ongoing.

PharMerica Matters

In November 1998 and February 1999, two putative securities
class actions were filed in federal court against the Company’s
PharMerica subsidiary and certain individuals. These cases were
later consolidated. The proposed classes consist of all persons who
purchased or acquired stock of PharMerica between January 7, 1998
and July 24, 1998. The complaint, which includes claims under
Section 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
alleges that defendants made various material misrepresentations
and omissions in connection with an alleged violation of generally
accepted accounting principles and the withholding of information
related to the costs associated with certain acquisitions. In
September 2002, defendants” motion to dismiss was granted.

The plaintiffs are not expected to appeal the dismissal.

Prior to the acquisition of PharMerica by the Company’s Bergen
Brunswig subsidiary, the United States Department of Health and
Human Services (“HHS”), during the course of a Medicare audit of
various nursing homes, requested PharMerica to produce records
related to intravenous pharmaceuticals provided to certain nursing
homes in 1997 and 1998. PharMerica has learned that HHS auditors
alleged that during the 1997-1998 time frame, certain nursing
homes, primarily operating in Texas, improperly billed Medicare for
intravenous pharmaceuticals and related services. In June 2000, the
government sued Sensitive Care, a former chain of thirteen Texas
nursing homes, alleging that Sensitive Care filed false claims for
Medicare reimbursement. Because Sensitive Care has filed for
bankruptcy, the government’s case has been filed in bankruptcy
court as a creditor’s claim. In its answer to the government’s
lawsuit, Sensitive Care has denied liability and has brought a
third-party complaint alleging that PharMerica is liable for any
false claims liabilities that may be imposed against Sensitive Care
under an indemnification clause contained in the pharmacy services
contracts between PharMerica and the nursing homes Sensitive Care
formerly operated. PharMerica denies that it has any liability for
fraudulent billings that Sensitive Care, an independent third-party
organization, may have submitted to the government. However,
PharMerica has entered into preliminary settlement discussions in
the interest of expeditiously resolving this matter.

Note 13. Business Segment Information

The Company is organized based upon the products and services
it provides to its customers. The Company’s operations have been
aggregated into two reportable segments: Pharmaceutical
Distribution and PharMerica.

The Pharmaceutical Distribution segment includes
AmerisourceBergen Drug Company (“ABDC”) and AmerisourceBergen
Specialty Group (“ABSG”). ABDC includes the full-service pharmaceu-
tical distribution facilities, American Health Packaging, and other
healthcare related businesses. ABDC sells pharmaceuticals, over-the-
counter medicines, health and beauty aids, and other health-related
products to hospitals, alternate care and mail order facilities, and
independent and chain retail pharmacies. American Health Packaging
packages oral solid medications for nearly any need in virtually all
settings of patient care. ABDC also provides promotional, inventory
management, pharmacy automation and information services to its




customers. ABSG sells specialty pharmaceutical products and services to physicians, clinics and other providers in the oncology, nephrology,
plasma and vaccines sectors. ABSG also provides third party logistics and reimbursement consulting services to healthcare product manufacturers.

The PharMerica segment consists solely of the Company’s PharMerica operations. PharMerica provides institutional pharmacy products and
services to patients in long-term care and alternate site settings, including skilled nursing facilities, assisted living facilities, and residential
living communities. PharMerica also provides mail order pharmacy services to chronically and catastrophically ill patients under workers’
compensation programs, and provides pharmaceutical claims administration services for payors.

All of the Company’s operations are located in the United States, except for one ABDC subsidiary, which operates in Puerto Rico.

The following tables present segment information for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands):

Revenue
Fiscal year ended September 30, J 0072 l 2001 2000
Pharmaceutical Distribution [‘ $39,550,858 $15,770,042 $11,609,995
PharMerica ’ 1,475,028 116,719 —
Intersegment eliminations ‘ (774,272) (64,126) —
Operating revenue 40,260,714 15,822,635 11,609,995
Bulk deliveries to customer warehouses 4,994,080 L 368,718 35,026

Total revenue | 845,294,794 | $16,191,353 $11,645,021

Management evaluates segment performance based on revenues excluding bulk deliveries to customer warehouses. For further information
regarding the nature of bulk deliveries, which only occur in the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment, see Note 1. Intersegment Eliminations
represent the elimination of the Pharmaceutical Distribution segment’s sales to PharMerica. ABDC is the principal supplier of pharmaceuticals
to PharMerica.

Operating Income

Fiscal year ended September 30, { 2001 2000
Pharmaceutical Distribution $659,208 $274,209 $201,002
PharMerica 88,464 6,472 -—
Merger costs, facility consolidations and employee severance,
and environmental remediation (“special items”) (26,264) (21,305) 1,123
Total operating income 718,428 259,376 202,125
Equity in losses of affiliates and other (5,647) (10,866) (568)
Interest expense (240,784) (47,853) (41,857)
Income before taxes $572,047 $200,657 $159,700

Segment operating income is evaluated before equity in losses of affiliates, interest expense, and special items. All corporate office
expenses are allocated to the two reportable segments.

Identifiable Assets

At September 30, [ 2001
Pharmaceutical Distribution $10,828,697 $ 9,730,042
PharMerica ‘ 566,313 561,203
Total assets § 94,213,002 $10,291,245

Depreciation & Amortization

Fiscal year ended September 30, 002 L 2001 2000
Pharmaceutical Distribution $64,321 $19,793 $16,109
PharMerica | 16,830 1,796 —
Total depreciation and amortization : 861,280 $21,589 $16,109

Depreciation and amortization includes depreciation and amortization of property and intangible assets, but excludes amortization of
deferred financing costs and other debt-related items, which is included in interest expense.

Capital Expenditures

Fiscal year ended September 30, r 2001 2000
Pharmaceutical Distribution | 844 07 $22,552 $16,619
PharMerica 20,088 811 —

Total capital expenditures 7 $66,189 | $23,363 $16,619
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Note 14. Disclosure Abou? Fair Value of Fnandal Instruments

The recorded amounts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable and accounts payable at September 30,
2002 approximate fair value. The fair values of the Company’s debt is estimated based on the market prices of these instruments. The recorded
amount of debt (see Note 5) and the corresponding fair value as of September 30, 2002 were $1,817,313 and $2,007,348, respectively. The
recorded amount of debt (see Note 5) and the corresponding fair value as of September 30, 2001 were $1,874,379 and $2,032,873, respectively.

Note 15. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal year ended September 30, 2002

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Operating revenue $9,686,276 $9,918,609 $10,278,327 $10,357,502 $40,240,714
Bulk deliveries to customer warehouses 1,382,504 1,025,658 1,342,500 1,243,418 4,994,080
Total revenue 11,068,780 10,944,267 11,620,827 11,600,920 45,234,794
Gross profit 471,433 514,493 509,929 528,619 2,024,474
Distribution, selling and administrative expenses,
depreciation and amortization 312,639 318,978 319,039 331,146 1,281,802
Merger costs (see Note 10) 7,497 4,741 8,147 3,859 24,244
Operating income 151,297 190,774 182,743 193,614 718,428
Net income 67,883 91,874 90,224 94,960 344,941
Earnings per share — basic .65 .88 .86 .89 3.29
Earnings per share — diluted .63 84 .82 .86 3.16
Fiscal year ended September 30, 2001
First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Operating revenue $3,306,751 $3,480,685 $3,518,852 $5,516,347 $15,822,635
Bulk deliveries to customer warehouses L4 313 77 367,884 368,718
Total revenue 3,307,195 3,480,998 3,518,929 5,884,231 16,191,353
Gross profit 137,433 151,169 144,939 266,577 700,118
Distribution, selling and administrative expenses,
depreciation and amortization 83,539 86,743 83,843 165,312 419,437
Merger costs, facility consolidations and employee
severance, and environmeantal remediation — — 903 20,402 21,305
Operating income 53,894 64,426 60,193 80,863 259,376
Net income 26,191 31,516 31,506 34,583 123,796
Earnings per share — basic .50 .60 .60 .49 2.16
Earnings per share — diluted .49 57 57 48 2.10

During fiscal 2001, the Company recorded merger costs of $0.9 million and $12.2 million in the third and fourth quarter, respectively, as
described in Note 10.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company recorded $10.9 million of facility consolidations and employee severance as described in
Note 11 and reversed $2.7 million of environmental reserves as described in Note 12.

Note 16. Subsequent Events

Issuance of $300 million of 7% Senior Notes

In November 2002, the Company issued $300 million of 7%% senior notes due November 15, 2012 (the “7%% Notes”). The 7%% Notes are
redeemable at the Company’s option at any time before maturity at a redemption price equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof plus
accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the date of redemption and, under some circumstances, a redemption premium.
Interest on the 7%% Notes is payable semiannually in arrears, commencing May 15, 2003. The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the
7':% Notes to repay $15 million of the term loan in December 2002 and $150 million in aggregate principal of the Bergen 7°%% senior notes
due January 15, 2003. Additionally, the Company intends to redeem the PharMerica 8%% senior notes due 2008 at a redemption price equal to
104.19% of the principal amount thereof. In connection with the issuance of the 7%% Notes, the Company incurred approximately $4.9 million
of costs which were deferred and will be amortized over the ten-year term of the notes.




Acquisition of Bridge Medical, Inc.

In November 2002, the Company signed a definitive agreement
to acquire Bridge Medical, Inc. (“Bridge”), a teading provider of
barcode-enabled point-of-care software designed to reduce medication
errors, for approximately $27 million. The agreement also provides
for contingent payments of up to a maximum of $55 million based
on Bridge achieving defined earnings targets through the end of
calendar 2004. The Company expects to close this transaction before
the end of the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2003, subject to the
completion of requlatory approvals, and intends to pay the base
purchase price and any contingent amounts primarily in shares of
Common Stock.

Acquisition of US Bioservices Corporation

In December 2002, the Company signed a definitive agreement
to acquire US Bioservices Corporation, a national pharmaceutical
services provider focused on the management of high-cost complex
therapies and reimbursement support, for approximately $160
million. The agreement also provides for contingent payments of up
to $30 million in cash based on US Bioservices achieving defined
earnings targets through the end of the first quarter of calendar
2004. Both the base purchase price and the contingent payments
are subject to potential adjustments at closing. The Company has
agreed to issue approximately 2.4 million shares of Common Stock
upon the closing of the transaction. The Company expects to
close this transaction before the end of the fiscal quarter ending
March 31, 2003, subject to the completion of requlatory approvals
and filings.

REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
AmerisourceBergen Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of AmerisourceBergen Corporation and subsidiaries as of September
30, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2002. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of AmerisourceBergen Corporation and subsidiaries
at September 30, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended September 30, 2002, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

Eovst + Y

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 4, 2002, except for Note 16,
as to which the date is December 13, 2002

AmerisourceBergen Corporatiognﬁ 2002
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REPRINTED BELOW ARE THE CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTICN 302 OF THE SARBAMES-CXLEY ACT OF 2002 THAT WERE FILED WITH
THE SEC AS PART OF THE COMPANY'S ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-% FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3C, 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
of AmerisourceBergen Corporation

L

1.

2.

3.

R. David Yost, certify that:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “annual
report”) of AmerisourceBergen Corporation (the “Registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not mis-
leading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 14 and 15 d - 14) for
the Registrant and we have:
(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that material information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;
evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and
(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based
on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

)
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. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed,

based on our most recent evaluation, to the Registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of Registrant’s board of directors:

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the Registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the Registrant’s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant
role in the Registrant’s internal controls; and

. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in

this annual report whether or not there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly
affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: December 24, 2002
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R. David Yost
Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
of AmerisocurceBergen Corporation

I, Michael D. DiCandilo, certify that:

-

. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “annual
report”) of AmerisourceBergen Corporation (the “Registrant”);

~n

. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not mis-
teading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report;
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. The Registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a - 14 and 15 d - 14) for
the Registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure
that material information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”);
and

(c) presented in this annual report our conctusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based
on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed,
based on our most recent evaluation, to the Registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of Registrant’s board of directors:

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls which could adversely affect the Registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
data and have identified for the Registrant’s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant
role in the Registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in
this annual report whether or not there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly
affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most
recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: December 24, 2002

Michael D. DiCandilo
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLBDER MATTERS

Since August 29, 2001, the Company’s Common Stock has been
traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbot
“ABC.” Prior to August 29, 2001, AmeriSource Health Corporation
Class A Common Stock was traded on the New York Stock Exchange
under the trading symbol “AAS.” As of December 2, 2002, there
were 2,431 record holders of the Company’s Common Stock. The
following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices of
AmeriSource Class A Common Stock and the Company’s Common
Stock for the periods indicated.

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

High Low
Year Ended 9/30/01
First Quarter $52.6250 $40.6875
Second Quarter 57.6500 42.0625
Third Quarter 61.7200 48.3899
Fourth Quarter 70.9499 54.6300
Year Ended 9/30/02
First Quarter 71.3000 55.1000
Second Quarter 70.0500 56.8000
Third Quarter 82.2600 66.0700
Fourth Quarter 73.2800 57.8000

The Company paid its first quarterly dividend, a cash dividend
of $0.025 per share on Common Stock, on December 3, 2001.
Dividends of $0.025 per share were paid on March 1, 2002, June 3,
2002 and September 3, 2002. A dividend of $0.025 per share was
declared by the board of directors on October 30, 2002, and was
paid on December 2, 2002 to stockholders of record at the close
of business on November 18, 2002. The Company anticipates that
it will continue to pay quarterly cash dividends in the future.
However, the payment and amount of future dividends remain
within the discretion of the Company’s board of directors and will
depend upon the Company’s future earnings, financial condition,
capital requirements and other factors.
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AmerisourceBergen Corporatio

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

On August 29, 2001, AmeriSource and Bergen merged to form the Company. The Merger was accounted for as an acquisition of Bergen
under the purchase methed of accounting. Accordingly, the results of operations and the balance sheet information in the table below reflect
only the operating results and financial position of AmeriSource for fiscal years ended September 30, 2000 and prior. The financial data for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 reflects the operating results for the full year of AmeriSource and approximately one month of Bergen,
and the financial position of the combined company. The following table should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the notes thereto, and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included
elsewhere in this report.

Fiscal year ended September 30,

(amounts in thousands, except per share amounts) | 2002 (&) 2001 (b) 2000 (c) 1999 (d) 1998 (e)
Operating revenue $40,240,714 $15,822,635 $11,609,995 $9,760,083 $9,373,482
Bulk deliveries to customer warehouses 4,994,080 368,718 35,026 47,280 129,555
Total revenue | 45,294,794 l 16,191,353 11,645,021 9,807,363 9,503,037
Gross profit 2,024,474 700,118 519,581 473,065 461,897
Operating expenses 1,306,046 440,742 317,456 314,063 322,966
QOperating income 718,428 259,376 202,125 159,002 138,931
Income before extraordinary items i D44, D45 123,796 99,014 70,915 46,030
Net income 344,041 123,796 99,014 67,466 46,030
Earnings per share — diluted (f):
Income before extraordinary items 3,16 2.10 1.90 1.38 .91
Net income 546 | 2.10 1.90 1.31 .91
Cash dividends declared per common share $ ©.10 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Weighted average common shares
outstanding — diluted 112,228 62,807 52,020 51,683 50,713
Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash § (63,240 ’ $ 297,626 $ 120,818 $§ 59,497 $ 90,344
Accounts receivable — net 2,222,156 2,142,663 623,961 612,520 509,130
Merchandise inventories | 3,437,878 5,056,257 1,570,504 1,243,153 954,010
Property and equipment — net 282,578 289,569 64,962 64,384 67,955
Total assets 10,213,012 10,291,245 2,458,567 2,060,599 1,726,272
Accounts payable 5,367,837 4,991,884 1,584,133 1,175,619 947,016
Long-term debt, including current portion (g) 1,817,313 1,874,379 413,675 559,127 540,327
Stockholders” equity 3,316,338 2,838,564 282,294 166,277 75,355
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 14,213,012 10,291,245 2,458,567 2,060,599 1,726,272

(a) Includes. $14.6 million of merger costs, net of income tax benefit of $9.6 million.

(b) Includes $8.0 million of merger costs, net of income tax benefit of $5.1 million, $6.8 million of costs related to facility consolidations and
employee severance, net of income tax benefit of $4.1 million, and a $1.7 million reduction in an environmental liability, net of income
taxes of $1.0 million.

(c) Includes a $0.7 million reversal of costs related to facility consolidations and employee severance, net of income taxes of $0.4 million.

(d) Includes $9.3 million of costs related to facility consolidations and employee severance, net of income tax benefit of $2.4 million, and
$2.7 million of merger costs, net of income tax benefit of $0.5 million.

(e) Includes $11.2 million of merger costs, net of income tax benefit of $7.2 million, and $5.1 million of costs related to facility
consolidations and employee severance, net of income tax benefit of $3.2 million.

(f) Inctudes the amortization of goodwill, net of income taxes, during fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2001. Had the Company not amortized good-
will, diluted earnings per share would have been $0.02 higher in fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000 and unchanged in fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1998.

(g) Debt includes company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trust.
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Corporate Officers
R. David Yost, Chief Executive Officer

Kurt J. Hilzinger, President & Chief Operating Officer

Charles J. Carpenter, Senior Vice President and
President of PharMerica, Inc.

Steven H. Collis, Senior Vice President and
President of AmerisourceBergen Specialty Group

Michael D. DiCandilo, Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Jeanne B. Fisher, Senior Vice President, Human Resources
Terrance P. Haas, Senior Vice President, Integration

Douglas E. Batezel, Vice President and
Chief Procurement Officer

Linda M. Burkett, Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Tim G. Guttman, Vice President and Corporate Controller
J.F. Quinn, Vice President and Corporate Treasurer

William D. Spraque, Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Vicki L. Bausinger, Assistant Secretary

Shareholder Services

Our transfer agent can help you with a variety of shareholder
services, including:

e Change of address

¢ Lost stock certificates

e Stock transfer

e Account consolidation

You can call our transfer agent toll-free at 800-756-3353
or write to:

Mellon Investor Services

85 Challenger Road

Overpeck Centre

Ridgefield Park, NJ 07760

Or you can e-mail our transfer agent at:
shrrelations@melloninvestor.com

Financial Information

Financial documents, such as our annual report, the

Form 10-K or Form 10-Q, may be obtained by accessing
the Company Internet site at www.amerisourcebergen.com
or by calling the Company at 610-727-7429.

Investor Relations

Shareholders, security analysts, portfolio managers

and other investors desiring further information about
the Company should contact Michael N. Kilpatric, Vice
President, Corporate & Investor Relations at 610-727-7118,
or mkilpatric@amerisourcebergen.com.

Annual Meeting

AmerisourceBergen shareholders are invited to attend

our annual meeting on February 27, 2003 at 2:00 p.m.

in the Adams Room at the Four Seasons Hotel Philadelphia,
One Logan Square, Philadelphia, PA 19103.

Independent Auditers
Ernst & Young LLP, Philadelphia, PA

Stock Listing
AmerisourceBergen is listed on The New York Stock
Exchange. NYSE ticker symbol: ABC
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AmerisourceBergen

AmerisourceBergen Corporation
P.C. Box 959
Valley Forge, Pennsylvania 19482

610-727-7000
www.amerisourcebergen.com
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